

**Section I**  
**Notice of Development of Proposed Rules**  
**and Negotiated Rulemaking**

NONE

**Section II**  
**Proposed Rules**

**DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION**

RULE NOS.:	RULE TITLES:
62-610.200	Definitions
62-610.310	Engineering Report
62-610.330	Pretreatment Programs
62-610.463	Monitoring and Operating Protocol
62-610.464	Storage Requirements
62-610.466	Aquifer Storage and Recovery (ASR)
62-610.471	Setback Distances
62-610.472	Supplemental Water Supplies
62-610.550	Description of System
62-610.553	Minimum System Size
62-610.554	Discharge to Class I Surface Waters
62-610.555	Discharge to Other Surface Waters
62-610.560	Ground Water Recharge by Injection
62-610.562	Salinity Barrier Systems
62-610.563	Waste Treatment and Disinfection
62-610.564	Pilot Testing Program
62-610.567	Reliability and Operator Staffing
62-610.568	Monitoring and Operating Protocol
62-610.573	Storage Requirements
62-610.574	Access Control, Advisory Signs, and Public Notification

**PURPOSE AND EFFECT:** The Department of Environmental Protection is revising Chapter 62-610, F.A.C., necessary to adopt recommendations of the Potable Reuse Commission’s 2020 report “Advancing Potable Reuse in Florida: Framework for the Implementation of Potable Reuse in Florida” as required by Florida’s Clean Waterways Act of 2020 and the new aquifer storage and recovery system requirements in Senate Bill 64 (2021). The proposed revisions add clarity to both substantive and administrative aspects of the chapter for indirect potable reuse and aquifer storage and recovery systems.

**SUMMARY:** Proposed revisions to Chapter 62-610, F.A.C., amend the regulatory framework for indirect potable reuse of reclaimed water. The amendments are based upon the Florida Potable Reuse Commission’s recommendations outlined in its January 2020 report “Advancing Potable Reuse in Florida: Framework for the Implementation of Potable Reuse in Florida” and new requirements for aquifer storage and recovery systems in Senate Bill 64 (2021).

OTHER RULES INCORPORATING THESE RULES: 62-302.300, 62-555.314, 62-555.360, 62-528.120, 62-40.210, 62-600.200, 62-600.300, 62-600.410, 62-600.420, 62-600.430, 62-600.440, 62-600.445, 62-600.500, 62-600.530 62-600.540, 62-600.550, 62-600.660, 62-600.670, 62-600.720, 62-600.740, 62-601.200, 62-601.500, 62-600.700, 62-604.100, 62-604.400, 40A-2.021, 40A-2.061, 40A-3.504, 40B-400.051, 40E-2.061, 40E-4.0515, 40D-2.021, 40D-4.051, 62-611.200, 62-520.300, 62-625.110, 62-625.500, 62-620.310, 62-620.620, 62-620.625, 62-620.630, 62-610.200 62-621.500, 62-610.860, 62-640.200, 62-699.310.

**SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COSTS AND LEGISLATIVE RATIFICATION:**

The Agency has determined that this will not have an adverse impact on small business or likely increase directly or indirectly regulatory costs in excess of \$200,000 in the aggregate within one year after the implementation of the rule. A SERC has not been prepared by the Agency.

The Agency has determined that the proposed rule is not expected to require legislative ratification based on the statement of estimated regulatory costs or if no SERC is required, the information expressly relied upon and described herein: Based on the Department’s economic review, neither a SERC nor legislative ratification is required because the adoption of the proposed rule does not increase regulatory costs directly or indirectly to the public.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding a statement of estimated regulatory costs, or provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

**RULEMAKING AUTHORITY:** 403.051, 403.061, 403.064, 403.087, F.S.

**LAW IMPLEMENTED:** 403.021, 403.051, 403.061, 403.062, 403.064, 403.085, 403.086, 403.087, 403.088 F.S.

**IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE SCHEDULED AND ANNOUNCED IN THE FAR.**

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Alexandra Spencer, Senior Program Analyst, Division of Water Resource Management, MS 3545, 2600 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, FL 32399, (850)245-8638 or by email at [Alexandra.Spencer@FloridaDEP.gov](mailto:Alexandra.Spencer@FloridaDEP.gov). If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

**THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS:** Alexandra Spencer, Senior Program

Analyst, Division of Water Resource Management, MS 3545, 2600 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, FL 32399, (850)245-8638 or by email at Alexandra.Spencer@FloridaDEP.gov.

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

**CHAPTER 62-610  
REUSE OF RECLAIMED WATER AND LAND  
APPLICATION**

**PART I GENERAL**

- 62-610.200 Definitions
- 62-610.300 General Technical Guidance, Related Rules, Technical Publications and Forms
- 62-610.310 Engineering Report
- 62-610.330 Pretreatment Programs
- PART III SLOW-RATE LAND APPLICATION SYSTEMS; PUBLIC ACCESS AREAS, RESIDENTIAL IRRIGATION, AND EDIBLE CROPS**
- 62-610.463 Monitoring and Operating Protocol
- 62-610.464 Storage Requirements
- 62-610.466 Aquifer Storage and Recovery (ASR)
- 62-610.471 Setback Distances
- 62-610.472 Supplemental Water Supplies
- PART IV RAPID-RATE LAND APPLICATION SYSTEMS (RAPID INFILTRATION BASINS AND ABSORPTION FIELDS)**
- PART V GROUND WATER RECHARGE AND INDIRECT POTABLE REUSE**
- 62-610.550 Description of System
- 62-610.553 Minimum System Size
- 62-610.554 Discharge to Class I Surface Waters
- 62-610.555 Discharge to Other Surface Waters
- 62-610.560 Ground Water Recharge by Injection
- 62-610.562 Salinity Barrier Systems
- 62-610.563 Waste Treatment and Disinfection
- 62-610.564 Pilot Testing Program
- 62-610.567 Reliability and Operator Staffing
- 62-610.568 Monitoring and Operating Protocol
- 62-610.573 Storage Requirements
- 62-610.574 Access Control, Advisory Signs, and Public Notification

**PART I GENERAL**

**62-610.200 Definitions.**

Terms used in this chapter shall have the meaning specified below. The meaning of any term not defined below may ~~shall~~ be taken from definitions in other rules of the Department.

(1) No change.

(2) “Advanced treated water” means water produced from an advanced water treatment process for potable reuse applications that meet the requirements in Chapters 62-550 and 62-555, F.A.C.

(3) “Appropriate Treatment Technology” means the treatment technology selected by a utility to address emerging constituents and pathogens in reclaimed water as part of a potable reuse project.

(2) through (7) renumbered (4) through (9) No change.

(10) “Constituent” means any physical, chemical, biological, or radiological substance or matter found in water, wastewater, or reclaimed water.

(11) “Critical control point” means a point in water treatment where control can be applied to an individual unit process to reduce, prevent, or eliminate process failure and where monitoring is conducted to confirm that the control point is functioning correctly. The goal is to reduce the risk of pathogen and chemical constituents in the finished water, as defined in Rule 62-550.200, F.A.C.

(8) through (18) renumber (12) through (23) No change.

(24) “Emerging constituent” means natural and synthetic chemicals or compounds not regulated in water, wastewater or reclaimed water that may cause negative ecological or human health impacts.

(19) through (26) renumbered (25) through (32) No change.

(33) “Indirect potable reuse” means the planned delivery or discharge of reclaimed water to ground or surface waters for the development of, or to supplement, potable water supply. ~~for purposes of this chapter, the planned discharge of reclaimed water to surface waters to augment the supply of water available for drinking water and other uses. Indirect potable reuse is contrasted with “direct potable reuse” which involves the discharge of reclaimed water directly into a drinking water treatment facility or into a drinking water distribution system.~~

(27) through (31) renumbered (34) through (38) No change.

(39) “Nonpotable reuse” means all water reuse applications except those related to potable reuse.

(32) through (39) renumbered (40) through (47) No change.

(48) “Potable reuse” means augmentation of a drinking water supply with reclaimed water, which includes indirect potable reuse.

(40) through (47) renumbered (49) through (56) No change.

(57) “Redundancy” means the use of multiple treatment barriers to attenuate the same type of constituent so that if one barrier fails, performs inadequately, or is taken offline for maintenance, the overall system still will perform effectively, and risk is reduced.

(48) through (54) renumbered (58) through (64) No change.

(65) “Source control” means the elimination or control of the discharge of constituents into a wastewater collection system that at certain quantities can impact a reuse project.

(55) through (63) renumbered (66) through (74) No change.

(75) “Treatment reliability” means the ability of a treatment process or treatment train to consistently achieve the desired degree of treatment, based on its inherent redundancy, robustness, and resilience.

(76) “Treatment train” means a grouping in series of treatment technologies or processes to achieve a specific treatment or water quality goal or objective.

(64) through (80) renumbered (77) through (93) No change.

(94) “Underground source of drinking water” means as defined in Chapter 62-528, F.A.C.

Rulemaking Authority 403.051, 403.061, 403.064, 403.087 FS. Law Implemented 403.021, 403.051, 403.061, 403.062, 403.064, 403.085, 403.086, 403.087, 403.088 FS. History—New 4-4-89, Amended 4-2-90, Formerly 17-610.200, Amended 1-9-96, 8-8-99, 11-19-07, 8-8-21, xx-xx-xx.

### **62-610.310 Engineering Report.**

(1) through (2) No change.

(3) The engineering report shall include the following:

(a) through (b) No change.

(c) Hydrogeologic Survey.

1. through 8. No change.

9. For aquifer storage and recovery projects regulated under Rule 62-610.466, F.A.C., and ground water recharge projects involving injection to G-II ground water, the engineering report shall characterize the total dissolved solids (TDS) concentration in the receiving ground water contained in the aquifer at the point of injection. See subsection 62-610.800(11), F.A.C. For aquifer storage and recovery projects, this shall include characterization of TDS concentrations within the proposed extended zone of discharge, as described in subsection ~~62-610.466(15)~~ ~~62-610.466(14)~~, F.A.C. For injection projects having a zone of discharge, as described in subsection 62-610.560(3) and Rule 62-610.562, F.A.C., the engineering report shall include characterization of TDS concentrations at the point of injection and within the zone of discharge. The methods used to make the TDS characterization shall be described. For ground water recharge projects, injection fluids shall not exceed the TDS concentration reported in the engineering report for the receiving ground waters. For ASR projects with a ZOD, the injection fluids shall not exceed the TDS concentration reported in the engineering report for the receiving ground waters at the edge of the ZOD.

(d) No change.

(e) Project Evaluation.

1. An evaluation of the overall long-term effect of the proposed project on environmental resources in the area shall be provided. The evaluation shall include aspects such as changes in water table elevations due to natural fluctuations and the reuse or land application project (including ground water mounding that may occur under the site), prediction of the rate and direction of movement of applied reclaimed water or effluent, changes in water quality in the area associated with the project, and similar information. A project evaluation shall demonstrate that discharges comply with subsection 62-610.850(2), F.A.C., and therefore will not cause degradation that would impair the designated use of an underground source of drinking water.

2. through 10. No change.

(f) No change.

(g) The engineering report or abbreviated engineering report shall be certified by a professional engineer registered in the State of Florida. Where required by Chapter 471 or 492, F.S., applicable portions of the report shall be signed and sealed by a professional engineer or professional geologist, as appropriate.

(h) through (j) No change.

(4) The engineering report for projects involving ground water recharge and ~~indirect~~ potable reuse regulated under Part V of this chapter shall address the following:

(a) The full engineering report requirements of Rule 62-610.310, F.A.C., shall apply.

(b) In addition, the engineering report shall address the following:

1. through 4. No change.

5. An evaluation of anticipated changes in the characteristics of the reclaimed water from the time of discharge to the time of recovery (e.g., anticipated reduction of pathogens from the time of discharge to the time of recovery) if the point of discharge of reclaimed water to ground water for indirect potable reuse is at or within a 5-year travel time of a public water supply well or a potable reuse supply well.

5. through 8. renumbered 6. through 9.

(5) No change.

Rulemaking Authority 403.051, 403.061, 403.087 FS. Law Implemented 403.021, 403.051, 403.061, 403.062, 403.085, 403.086, 403.087, 403.0877, 403.088 FS. History—New 4-4-89, Amended 4-2-90, Formerly 17-610.310, Amended 1-9-96, 8-8-99, 4-1-21, xx-xx-xx.

### **62-610.330 Pretreatment Programs.**

(1) A pretreatment program shall be developed ~~and implemented~~, in accordance with Chapter 62-625, F.A.C., for nonpotable reuse projects regulated under Parts III or V of this chapter or under Rule 62-610.525, F.A.C.; ~~if~~ the wastewater facility receives discharges from significant industrial users, as defined in Rule 62-625.200,

F.A.C., the pretreatment program shall be fully implemented. For nonpotable reuse projects, Pretreatment program requirements apply only to public utilities, as defined in Rule 62-625.200, F.A.C.

(2) For potable reuse systems regulated under Part V of this chapter, a comprehensive pretreatment and pollutant source control program shall be developed and implemented for regulating the discharge of wastes to the wastewater facility that may adversely affect the potable reuse system's water quality or production. The program standards and requirements in Chapter 62-625, F.A.C., as well as this section apply to the entire potable reuse system (from collection systems through to the potable water distribution system), including privately-owned portions of the system.

(a) The comprehensive pretreatment and pollutant source control program shall include a pretreatment program developed and implemented in accordance with Chapter 62-625, F.A.C., and:

1. The legal authority to implement the comprehensive pretreatment and pollutant source control program, including authority for oversight, inspection and enforcement, and review of new connections to the collection system;

2. In addition to those chemicals and constituents identified in subsection 62-625.600(8), F.A.C.:

a. Assessments of the fate of chemicals and constituents in the wastewater that are believed to be present and that may pass through or cause interference with the potable reuse system and are precursors to disinfection byproduct formation, have primary and secondary drinking water standards, listed in the most recent U.S. EPA Contaminant Candidate List or other Department-specified chemicals and constituents;

b. Source investigations and monitoring that focuses on chemicals and constituents in the wastewater that are believed to be present and that may pass through or cause interference with the potable reuse system, are precursors to disinfection byproduct formation, have primary and secondary drinking water standards, listed in the most recent U.S. EPA Contaminant Candidate List or other Department-specified chemicals and constituents; and

c. Development and adoption of local discharge limitations to also protect the public health and water quality for potable reuse for chemicals and constituents in the wastewater that are believed to be present, and that may pass through or cause interference with the potable reuse system, are precursors to disinfection byproduct formation, have primary and secondary drinking water standards, listed in the most recent U.S. EPA Contaminant Candidate List or other Department-specified chemicals and constituents;

3. An outreach program to industrial, commercial, and residential communities within the portions of the wastewater

collection system service area that serves as the source for potable reuse systems for the purpose of managing and minimizing the discharge of chemicals and constituents in the wastewater that may be difficult to remove, are precursors to disinfection byproduct formation, have primary and secondary drinking water standards, listed in the most recent U.S. EPA Contaminant Candidate List or other Department-specified chemicals and constituents

4. A current inventory of chemicals and contaminants identified and evaluated pursuant to subparagraph 62-610.330(2)(a)2., F.A.C., including new chemicals and contaminants resulting from new sources or changes to existing sources, that may be discharged into the wastewater collection system;

5. Significant industrial users shall implement a slug control plan that includes, at a minimum, all elements in subparagraphs 62-625.500(2)(b)6.a. through d., F.A.C. The plan shall be re-evaluated annually and updated as necessary;

6. Power-operated equipment associated with controlling and monitoring discharges to the wastewater collection system from industrial and commercial facilities (e.g., alarms, valve actuators, programmable logic controllers, and monitoring devices) shall have a continuous power source at all times in when a discharge can occur. At any time that the power source is interrupted the facility must inform the control authority, as defined in Rule 62-625.200, F.A.C., immediately. Manual monitoring and sampling shall be required to ensure compliance with control authority-issued permit;

7. A sewershed early warning surveillance program consisting of on-line instrumentation at critical locations that has real-time monitoring, and event detection (e.g., chemical peaks), and a hierarchical decision tree or set of rules to classify the alert and determine the appropriate response. A risk assessment shall be conducted to identify wastewater constituents and locations where real-time monitoring should be best applied to detect and alert when a potential adverse event is occurring; and

8. A continuous improvement plan for performance and reliability of the early warning system. The plan shall be re-evaluated at least once every two years and revised accordingly. This requirement may be deferred by using other mitigation measures, including additional treatment barriers, blending, effluent monitoring, and diversion; and

9. A continuous improvement process to address all aspects of the comprehensive pretreatment and pollutant source control program

(b) In addition to the annual control authority report requirements in subparagraph 62-625.600(8), F.A.C., the report shall also include:

1. The toxic pollutants identified in 62-625.600(8)(f), F.A.C., shall be monitored on a semi-annual basis.
2. Whether or not the facility complied with all applicable potable reuse system requirements, and if not, whether any noncompliance was a result of non-domestic discharges;
3. A summary of all triggers of early warning systems and consequent responses; and
4. A summary of all enhancements to real-time monitoring and early warning systems.
  - (2) through (3) renumbered (3) through (4)
  - (5) For reuse projects, development and evaluations of local limits in accordance with Chapter 62-625, F.A.C., shall be certified by a professional engineer registered in the State of Florida. Where required by Chapter 471 or 492, F.S., applicable portions of the report shall be signed and sealed by a professional engineer or professional geologist, as appropriate.

Rulemaking Authority 403.051, 403.061, 403.087 FS. Law Implemented 403.021, 403.051, 403.061, 403.062, 403.085, 403.086, 403.087, 403.088 FS. History—New 4-4-89, Amended 4-2-90, Formerly 17-610.330, Amended 1-9-96, 8-8-99, 8-8-21, xx-xx-xx.

**PART III SLOW-RATE LAND APPLICATION SYSTEMS; PUBLIC ACCESS AREAS, RESIDENTIAL IRRIGATION, AND EDIBLE CROPS**  
**62-610.463 Monitoring and Operating Protocol.**

- (1) No change.
- (2) The treatment facility shall include continuous on-line monitoring for turbidity before application of the disinfectant. Continuous on-line monitoring of total residual chlorine or for residual concentrations of other disinfectants, if used, shall be provided at the compliance monitoring point. Instruments for continuous on-line monitoring of turbidity and disinfectant residuals shall be equipped with an automated data logging or recording device. Continuous on-line monitoring instruments shall be calibrated according to the requirements of Chapters 62-160 and 62-600, F.A.C. Continuous on-line monitoring instruments shall be maintained according to the manufacturer’s operation and maintenance instructions. In accordance with Rule 62-610.320, F.A.C., the permittee shall develop, and the Department shall approve, an operating protocol designed to ensure that the high-level disinfection criteria will be met before the reclaimed water is released to the system storage or to the reclaimed water reuse system. The operating protocol shall be reviewed and updated as required in Rule 62-610.320, F.A.C. Reclaimed water produced at the treatment facility that fails to meet the criteria established in the operating protocol (i.e., off-spec reclaimed water), shall not be discharged into system storage or to the reuse system. Off-spec reclaimed water ~~Such standard reclaimed water (reject water)~~ shall be either stored for subsequent

additional treatment or shall be discharged to another permitted reuse system requiring lower levels of preapplication treatment or to a permitted effluent disposal system.

- (3) through (4) No change.
- Rulemaking Authority 403.051, 403.061, 403.087 FS. Law Implemented 403.021, 403.051, 403.061, 403.062, 403.085, 403.086, 403.087, 403.088 FS. History—New 4-4-89, Amended 4-2-90, Formerly 17-610.463, Amended 1-9-96, 8-8-99, 8-8-21, xx-xx-xx.

**62-610.464 Storage Requirements.**

- (1) through (2) No change
- (3) In addition, a separate, off-line system for storage of off-spec reclaimed reject water shall be provided, unless another permitted reuse system or effluent disposal system is capable of discharging the off-spec reclaimed reject water in accordance with requirements of Chapter 62-600, F.A.C. Off-spec reclaimed Reject water storage shall have sufficient capacity to ensure the retention of reclaimed water of unacceptable quality. At a minimum, this capacity shall be the volume equal to one day flow at the average daily design flow of the treatment plant or the average daily permitted flow of the reuse system, whichever is less. Provisions for recirculating this off-spec reclaimed reject water to other parts of the treatment plant for further treatment shall be incorporated into the design.

(4) Requirements for system storage and off-spec reclaimed reject water holding ponds shall be as contained in Rule 62-610.414, F.A.C., except for the following:

- (a) through (c) No change.
- (5) No change.

Rulemaking Authority 403.051, 403.061, 403.087 FS. Law Implemented 403.021, 403.051, 403.061, 403.062, 403.085, 403.086, 403.087, 403.088 FS. History—New 4-4-89, Amended 4-2-90, Formerly 17-610.464, Amended 1-9-96, 8-8-99, 4-1-21, xx-xx-xx.

**62-610.466 Aquifer Storage and Recovery (ASR).**

(1) ASR can be an effective and environmentally sound approach to provision of storage for reclaimed water for reuse systems regulated under this of chapter. ASR by itself does not constitute “reuse.” It is only when reclaimed water, which has been stored in an aquifer, is recovered and used for beneficial purposes that the reclaimed water is considered to be “reused.” ASR systems are considered components of the overall reuse system.

(2)(1) Aquifer storage and recovery ASR of reclaimed water involves the following:

- (a) Injection of reclaimed water into a subsurface formation for storage; and,
- (b) Recovery of the stored reclaimed water for beneficial purposes at a later date.

1. For nonpotable reuse projects, recovered water is also subject to the requirements of Part III of this chapter.

2. For potable reuse projects, recovered water is also subject to the requirements of Part V of this chapter. Injection of reclaimed water directly or indirectly into a underground source of drinking water shall be considered potable reuse, except where the recovered water is used for irrigation purposes and meets the requirements in subsection 62-610.466(11), F.A.C.

~~(2) ASR can be an effective and environmentally sound approach to provision of storage for reclaimed water for reuse systems regulated under part III of this chapter. ASR by itself does not constitute "reuse." It is only when reclaimed water, which has been stored in an aquifer, is recovered and used for beneficial purposes that the reclaimed water is considered to be "reused." ASR systems are considered components of the overall reuse system.~~

(3) No change.

(4) In the engineering report submitted with the initial application to implement an ASR system, the applicant shall provide an evaluation of the anticipated changes in the characteristics of the reclaimed water during the injection, storage, and recovery phases. In the engineering report, the applicant shall evaluate the need for additional treatment or disinfection upon recovery before introduction of the recovered water into system storage or the reuse system. The engineering report shall include an initial characterization of the ground water at the point of injection. The ground water characterization shall include analyses for all parameters for which ground water quality standards have been established in Chapter 62-520, F.A.C., and for enteric viruses, *Cryptosporidium oocystes*, *Giardia lamblia*, and total fecal coliforms. The characterization of TDS ~~at the point of injection~~ is discussed in subparagraph 62-610.310(3)(c)9. and subsection 62-610.800(11), F.A.C.

(5) The water recovered from the ~~ASR aquifer storage and recovery~~ system for nonpotable reuse purposes shall meet the performance standards for fecal coliforms as specified for high-level disinfection before use in a reuse system regulated under Part III of this chapter. The water recovered from the ASR system for potable reuse purposes shall meet the performance and disinfection standards established for a reuse system regulated under Part V of this chapter.

(6) through (7) No change.

(8) Use of Class G-I or F-I ground water.

(a) No change.

(b) Except as provided in subsection ~~62-610.466(18)~~ ~~62-610.466(17)~~, F.A.C., additional treatment or disinfection shall not be required upon recovery of the reclaimed water.

(9) Use of Class G-II ground water for potable reuse projects and ~~Use of Class G-II ground water containing 3000~~

mg/L or less of total dissolved solids for nonpotable reuse projects.

(a) Wells may be used to inject reclaimed water ~~into Class G-II ground water containing 3000 mg/L or less of total dissolved solids~~ for ASR if all of the following conditions are met

1. through 2. No change.

(b) If the applicant provides an affirmative demonstration that the receiving ground water contains between 1,000 and 3,000 mg/L (inclusive) of total dissolved solids, is not currently used as a source of public water supply, and that the receiving ground water is not reasonably expected to be used for public water supply in the future; or if the applicant provides an affirmative demonstration that the reuse project meets the requirements in paragraph 62-610.466(11), F.A.C., the preapplication treatment and disinfection requirements shall be as follows:

1. The principal treatment and disinfection requirements in Rule 62-610.563, F.A.C., shall apply, with the following modifications:

a. The parameters listed as primary drinking water standards shall be applied as maximum single sample permit limitations, including total coliforms as required in Rule 62-550.830, F.A.C. The fecal coliform limitations associated with high-level disinfection shall not apply. The primary drinking water standards for asbestos and sodium shall not apply as reclaimed water limitations.

b. The secondary drinking water standards shall not be applied as reclaimed water limitations. As described in paragraph ~~62-610.466(15)(a)~~ ~~62-610.466(14)(a)~~, F.A.C., the ground water standard for sodium shall be met at the edge of the zone of discharge. As described in paragraph ~~62-610.466(15)(f)~~ ~~62-610.466(14)(f)~~, F.A.C., the ground water standards corresponding to the secondary drinking water standards shall be met at the edge of the extended zone of discharge.

c. through d. No change.

(c) No change.

(d) Except as provided in subparagraph ~~62-610.466(13)(b)1.~~ ~~62-610.466(12)(b)1.~~, and subsection ~~62-610.466(18)~~ ~~62-610.466(17)~~, F.A.C., additional treatment or disinfection shall not be required upon recovery of the reclaimed water.

(10) Use of Class G-II ground water containing greater than 3000 mg/L of total dissolved solids for nonpotable reuse projects.

(a) Wells may be used to inject reclaimed water ~~into Class G-II ground water containing greater than 3000 mg/L of total dissolved solids~~ for ASR if all of the following conditions are met:

1. through 2. No change

(b) No change.

(11) Reclaimed water that is injected into a confined aquifer with a groundwater of less than 1,000 mg/L TDS and recovered water is solely used for irrigation purposes shall meet the nonpotable reuse requirements of this chapter that apply to reclaimed water injected into a receiving groundwater that has 1,000 to 3,000 mg/L TDS provided the following conditions are met:

(a) the applicant demonstrates that it is injecting into a confined aquifer;

(b) no potable water supply wells exist within 3,500 feet of the ASR wells; and

(c) institutional controls have been implemented to prevent future construction of potable water supply wells within 3,500 feet of the ASR wells.

Reclaimed water from activities that meet these criteria shall not cause or contribute to violations of water quality standards in surface waters, including groundwater discharges that flow by interflow and affect water quality in surface waters.

(11) renumbered (12) No change.

~~(13)(12)~~ Monitoring.

(a) No change.

(b) Water recovered from the ASR system.

1. Except as provided in subparagraphs ~~62-610.466(13)(b)2.~~ ~~62-610.466(12)(b)2.~~ and 3., F.A.C., the reclaimed water recovered from the ASR system shall be monitored for TSS, and *E. Coli* or *Enterococci* fecal coliforms, as applicable, at the same frequency specified in Chapter 62-600, F.A.C., for the treatment facility providing reclaimed water to the reuse system. CBOD5 shall be monitored monthly. If the reclaimed water withdrawn from an ASR system fails to meet the CBOD5, TSS, *E. Coli* or *Enterococci* fecal coliforms limits established for a reuse project regulated under Part III of this chapter, the Department shall require that additional treatment or disinfection facilities be provided to ensure compliance with these limits. If the CBOD5 limits are not met, the Department shall increase the sampling frequency for CBOD5 to the level required in Chapter 62-600, F.A.C.

2. If the reclaimed water injected into the ASR system meets the full treatment and disinfection requirements in Rule 62-610.563, F.A.C., *E. Coli* or *Enterococci* fecal coliforms, as applicable, shall be monitored monthly in the water recovered from the ASR system.

3. No change.

(c) through (d) No change.

(13) renumbered (14) No change.

~~(15)(14)~~ Extended zone of discharge.

(a) through (f) No change.

(15) through (16) renumbered (16) through (17) No change.

~~(18)(17)~~ The permittee shall assess the performance of the ASR system on a monthly basis.

(a) During operation of the reuse system, if it is shown that water recovered from the aquifer storage and recovery system does not meet the fecal coliform performance criteria associated with high level disinfection applicable microbiological standards, or if the water recovered adversely affects vegetation or crops grown in the reuse system or adversely affects the infiltration/percolation capability of soils within the reuse system, the permittee shall do the following:

1. through 3. No change.

4. Submit a written report to the Department within 120 days of identification of a potential problem. The report shall address the requirements of subparagraphs ~~62-610.466(18)(a)1.~~ ~~62-610.466(17)(a)1.~~ through 3., F.A.C.

(b) No change.

(c) Nothing in subsection ~~62-610.466(18)~~ ~~62-610.466(17)~~, F.A.C., shall preclude the Department from taking enforcement action to compel compliance with the requirements of Rule 62-610.466, F.A.C., the requirements of Part III of this chapter, or the ground water standards contained in Chapter 62-520, F.A.C.

Rulemaking Authority 403.051, 403.061, 403.087 FS. Law Implemented 403.021, 403.051, 403.061, 403.062, 403.085, 403.086, 403.087, 403.088 FS. History—New 8-8-99, Amended, 8-8-21, ~~xx-xx-xx~~.

#### **62-610.471 Setback Distances.**

(1) through (10) No change.

(11) For ASR projects regulated under Rule 62-610.466, F.A.C., setback distance requirements for injection and recovery wells and for extended zones of discharge are contained in subsections ~~62-610.466(14) and (15).~~ ~~62-610.466(13) and (14).~~ F.A.C.

Rulemaking Authority 403.051, 403.061, 403.064, 403.087 FS. Law Implemented 403.021, 403.051, 403.061, 403.062, 403.064, 403.085, 403.086, 403.087, 403.088 FS. History—New 4-4-89, Amended 4-2-90, Formerly 17-610.471, Amended 1-9-96, 8-8-99, 11-19-07, 4-1-21, ~~xx-xx-xx~~.

#### **62-610.472 Supplemental Water Supplies.**

(1) through (3) No change.

(4) Ground water supplies.

(a) Ground water supplies may be used to supplement the reclaimed water supply, if all of the following conditions are met:

1. through 2. No change

3. Monitoring of the ground water supply shall be conducted quarterly for total fecal coliforms as specified in Rule 62-520.830, F.A.C., unless additional monitoring is required by paragraph 62-610.472(4)(b), F.A.C. ~~At the end of the first year of operation, monitoring of the ground water~~

~~supply shall be reduced if the applicant provides an affirmative demonstration that the ground water supply meets the high level disinfection criteria for fecal coliforms and that public health will be protected.~~

- 4. No change.
- (b) through (c) No change
- (5) through (7) No change.

Rulemaking Authority 403.051, 403.061, 403.087 FS. Law Implemented 403.021, 403.051, 403.061, 403.062, 403.085, 403.086, 403.087, 403.088 FS. History—New 8-8-99, Amended 8-8-21, ~~xx-xx-xx~~.

**PART IV RAPID-RATE LAND APPLICATION SYSTEMS (RAPID INFILTRATION BASINS AND ABSORPTION FIELDS)**

**PART V GROUND WATER RECHARGE AND INDIRECT POTABLE REUSE**

**62-610.550 Description of System.**

- (1) Ground water recharge.

(a) This type of reuse system involves the planned use of reclaimed water to augment Class F-I, G-I, or G-II ground waters without developing or supplementing the potable water supply. Types of ground water recharge systems include:

- 1. through 3. No change.
- 4. Discharge to surface waters which are directly connected to Class F-I, G-I, or G-II (unless otherwise classified by the Commission) ground waters, as described in Rule ~~62-610.555~~ 62-610.554, F.A.C.

- (b) No Change.

(c) Before applying for a proposed ground water recharge or salinity barrier project, the applicant shall comply with the public notification requirements contained in subsection 62-610.574(4)(d), F.A.C.

(d) Applications proposing ground water recharge or salinity barrier projects shall be submitted to both the Department and the appropriate water management district.

(2) ~~Indirect Potable reuse. This type of reuse system~~ involves the planned use of reclaimed water to augment potable water supplies or surface water resources which are used or will be used for public water supplies. ~~Indirect potable reuse systems include:~~

- (a) Potable reuse projects include:

1. The introduction of reclaimed water meeting advanced waste treatment requirements, including high-level disinfection, as defined in section 403.086, F.S., to a water treatment facility meeting the technical and permitting requirements in Chapters 62-550 and 62-555, F.A.C.

2. ~~(a)~~ Discharges to Class I surface waters, as described in Rule 62-610.554, F.A.C.

3. ~~(b)~~ Discharges to other surface waters which are directly or indirectly connected to Class I surface waters, as described in Rule ~~62-610.554~~ 62-610.555, F.A.C.

4. Discharge to F-I, G-I, G-II, or G-III ground waters as described in Rule 62-610.560, F.A.C., and by injection of treated reclaimed water, or by rapid-rate land application systems where the requirements of Rule 62-610.525, F.A.C., apply and the planned supply wells are located within the applicable setback distances in Chapter 62-610, F.A.C.

(b) Applicants shall conduct a pilot study in accordance with Rule 62-610.564, F.A.C.

(c) All potable reuse projects shall be designed and operated to comply with, at a minimum, the following:

- 1. system size requirements in Rule 62-610.553, F.A.C.;
- 2. full treatment and disinfection requirements in subsection 62-610.563(3), F.A.C., prior to the reclaimed water leaving the domestic wastewater treatment facility.
- 3. the technical requirements in Chapters 62-550 and 62-555, F.A.C.;
- 4. reliability and operator staffing requirements in Rule 62-610.567, F.A.C.;
- 5. monitoring and operating protocol requirements in Rule 62-610.568, F.A.C.; and
- 6. storage requirements in Rule 62-610.573, F.A.C.

(d) Indirect potable reuse systems that discharge reclaimed water to Class I waters, upstream of Class I waters, or to waters contiguous to or tributary to Class I waters shall meet the requirements in Rule 62-610.554, F.A.C. Potable water intakes within Class I surface waters shall meet the setback distance requirements in subsections 62-610.571(2) and (6), F.A.C.

(e) Indirect potable reuse systems using an ASR system shall meet the requirements for ASR systems in Rule 62-610.466, F.A.C., the setback distances in Rule 62-610.571, F.A.C., and the requirements for hydraulic loading rates in Rule 62-610.575, F.A.C.

(f) Indirect potable reuse systems that discharge reclaimed water to ground waters shall meet the setback distances in Rule 62-610.571, F.A.C., and the requirements for hydraulic loading rates in Rule 62-610.575, F.A.C.

(3) Before submitting a permit application for a proposed indirect potable reuse system, the applicant shall comply with the public notification requirements contained in subsection 62-610.574(4), F.A.C.

(4) Permit applications proposing indirect potable reuse projects shall be submitted to both the Department and the appropriate water management district.

(5) Existing facilities with indirect potable reuse projects (those that had permit applications which authorized indirect potable reuse systems approved by the Department on or before [inset effective date of rule] ) shall comply with the



potable water system operation requirements in Chapters 62-550, 62-555 and 62-610, F.A.C., no later than January 1, 2032.

(6) To ensure protection of public health, safety, and welfare, any construction, modification, or operation of a ground water recharge or potable reuse system or related activity shall be in accordance with sound professional engineering practices; and any supporting documents involving the practice of the profession of geology shall be in accordance with sound professional geological practices. All plans of study, reports and applications for permits shall be certified by a professional engineer registered in the State of Florida except where professional engineering is not required by Chapter 471, F.S. Where required by Chapter 471 or 492, F.S., applicable portions of plans of study, reports, permit applications and supporting documents which are submitted to the Department for public record shall be signed and sealed by a professional engineer or professional geologist, as appropriate.

Rulemaking Authority 403.051, 403.061, 403.087 FS. Law Implemented 403.021, 403.051, 403.061, 403.062, 403.085, 403.086, 403.087, 403.088 FS. History—New 4-4-89, Formerly 17-610.550, Amended 1-9-96, 8-8-99, 4-1-21, xx-xx-xx.

#### **62-610.553 Minimum System Size.**

Reclaimed water from treatment facilities with a design average daily flow of less than 0.1 mgd shall not be used for ground water recharge or ~~indirect~~ potable reuse under the provisions of Part V of this chapter

Rulemaking Authority 403.051, 403.061, 403.087 FS. Law Implemented 403.021, 403.051, 403.061, 403.062, 403.085, 403.086, 403.087, 403.088 FS. History—New 1-9-96, Amended, 4-1-21, xx-xx-xx.

#### **62-610.554 Discharge to Class I Surface Waters.**

(1) through (2) No change.

(3) Discharges of reclaimed water to Class I waters, or to waters contiguous to or tributary to Class I waters shall be considered as being potable reuse for ~~indirect~~ potable purposes.

(4) For purposes of this rule, discharge to waters contiguous to or tributary to Class I waters shall be defined as a discharge located less than or equal to four hours travel time from the point of discharge to arrival at the boundary of the Class I water. Travel time determinations shall be based upon the expected flow of the receiving water during the wettest month of the year with the discharge activated. The travel time shall be documented in the engineering report.

(5) Discharges of reclaimed water upstream of Class I waters shall be considered potable reuse only if the applicant provides an affirmative demonstration in the engineering report of the following:

a. There is a need to supplement the supply of water in the Class I water for public water supply purposes; and,

b. Discharge of reclaimed water will meet part or all of the identified need to supplement the water supply.

(6) For purposes of this rule, discharge to waters upstream of Class I waters shall be defined as a discharge located greater than 4 hours and less than or equal to 24 hours travel time from the point of discharge to arrival at the boundary of the Class I water. Travel time determinations shall be based upon the expected flow of the receiving water during the wettest month of the year with the discharge activated. The travel time shall be documented in the engineering report. Surface water discharges located greater than 24 hours travel time to Class I waters shall not be considered as potable reuse. Discharges located greater than 24 hours travel time to Class I waters are not subject to regulation under Chapter 62-610, F.A.C.

(7)(4) ~~The reclaimed water shall meet the full principal treatment and disinfection requirements contained in subsection 62-610.563(3)62-610.563(2), F.A.C. The reclaimed water shall meet the drinking water standards as described in paragraph 62-610.563(3)(b), F.A.C. The disinfection standards in sub-subparagraph 62-610.563(3)(b)1.a., F.A.C., shall govern. The fecal coliform limitations associated with high-level disinfection shall not apply. If the ambient water quality in the receiving Class I water does not meet the drinking water standards, the Department shall establish alternate reclaimed water limits at the level in the receiving water. In no case shall the alternate limits exceed the Class I water standards. Alternative limits will be applied as single sample maxima. Total organic carbon (TOC) shall not exceed 3.0 mg/L as the monthly average limitation. No single sample shall exceed 5.0 mg/L.~~

(8)(5) Discharges to surface waters shall meet the requirements in paragraph 62-610.850(1)(b), F.A.C. ~~reclaimed water or effluent limits established by procedures contained in chapter 62-650, F.A.C., and the requirements of the antidegradation policy contained in rules 62-4.242 and 62-302.300, F.A.C.~~

(6) renumbered (9) No change.

(10)(7) The reclaimed water shall be sampled and analyzed for TOC and TOX in accord with subsection 62-610.568(4), F.A.C.

Rulemaking Authority 403.051, 403.061, 403.087 FS. Law Implemented 403.021, 403.051, 403.061, 403.062, 403.085, 403.086, 403.087, 403.088 FS. History—New 1-9-96, Amended 8-8-99, 4-1-21, xx-xx-xx.

#### **62-610.555 Discharge to Other Surface Waters.**

(1) ~~Discharge to waters contiguous to or tributary to Class I waters.~~

(a) For purposes of this paragraph, discharge to waters

contiguous to or tributary to Class I waters shall be defined as a discharge located less than or equal to four hours travel time from the point of discharge to arrival at the boundary of the Class I water. Travel time determinations shall be based upon the expected flow of the receiving water during the wettest month of the year with the discharge activated. The travel time shall be documented in the engineering report.

(b) The reclaimed water shall meet the principal treatment and disinfection requirements contained in subsection 62-610.563(2), F.A.C. The reclaimed water shall meet the drinking water standards as described in paragraph 62-610.563(3)(b), F.A.C. The disinfection standards in sub-subparagraph 62-610.563(3)(b)1.a., F.A.C., shall govern. The fecal coliform limitations associated with high level disinfection shall not apply. If the ambient water quality in the receiving Class I water does not meet the drinking water standards, the Department shall establish alternate reclaimed water limits at the level in the receiving water. In no case shall the alternate limits exceed the Class I water standards. Alternate limits will be applied as single sample maxima. Total organic carbon (TOC) shall not exceed 3.0 mg/L as the monthly average limitation. No single sample shall exceed 5.0 mg/L.

(c) Discharge of reclaimed water or effluent to waters contiguous to or tributary to Class I waters shall be in accordance with chapter 62-650, F.A.C. Discharges shall meet the requirements of the antidegradation policy contained in rules 62-4.242 and 62-302.300, F.A.C.

(d) Discharge of reclaimed water to waters contiguous to or tributary to Class I waters shall be considered as indirect potable reuse.

(e) Mixing zones shall not extend into Class I waters.

(f) The reclaimed water shall be sampled and analyzed for TOC in accord with subsection 62-610.568(4), F.A.C.

(2) Discharge upstream of Class I waters.

(a) For purposes of this paragraph, discharge to waters upstream of Class I waters shall be defined as a discharge located greater than 4 hours and less than or equal to 24 hours travel time from the point of discharge to arrival at the boundary of the Class I water. Travel time determinations shall be based upon the expected flow of the receiving water during the wettest month of the year with the discharge activated. The travel time shall be documented in the engineering report.

(b) The reclaimed water shall meet the principal treatment and disinfection requirements contained in subsection 62-610.563(2), F.A.C.

(c) Discharge of reclaimed water or effluent upstream of Class I waters shall be in accordance with chapter 62-650, F.A.C. Discharges shall meet the requirements of the antidegradation policy contained in rules 62-4.242 and 62-

302.300, F.A.C.

(d) Discharge upstream of Class I waters shall be considered as indirect potable reuse only if the applicant provides an affirmative demonstration in the engineering report of the following:

1. There is a need to supplement the supply of water in the Class I water for public water supply purposes; and,

2. Discharge of reclaimed water will meet part or all of the identified need to supplement the water supply.

(3) Surface water discharges located greater than 24 hours travel time to Class I waters shall not be considered as indirect potable reuse. Discharges located greater than 24 hours travel time to Class I waters are not subject to regulation under chapter 62-610, F.A.C.

(1)(4) Discharge to other surface waters which are directly connected to Class F-I, G-I, or G-II ground waters.

(a) through (b) No change.

(c) A wetlands or other surface water which may recharge an underlying aquifer through percolation downward through unconsolidated material shall not be considered as being directly connected to ground water for purposes of this paragraph. Discharges to wetlands are subject to the requirements of Chapter 62-611, F.A.C. Discharges to other surface waters are subject to all applicable discharge and permitting requirements contained in Department rules, Florida Statutes and Laws of Florida, the requirements of Chapter 62-650, F.A.C. Discharge to a wetlands or other surface water which recharges ground water through vertical percolation also are subject to regulation under the ground water rules in Chapters 62-520 and 62-522, F.A.C. These surface water discharges are not subject to regulation under Chapter 62-610, F.A.C.

(d) through (e) No change.

(f) Discharges to surface waters shall meet the requirements in paragraph 62-610.850(1)(b), F.A.C. reclaimed water or effluent limits established by procedures contained in Chapter 62-650, F.A.C. Discharge limits shall be established to ensure that ground water quality criteria established in Chapter 62-520, F.A.C., will be met at the point or points where the surface water enters the ground water system. ~~These surface water discharges shall meet the requirements of the antidegradation policy contained in Rules 62-4.242 and 62-302.300, F.A.C.~~

Rulemaking Authority 403.051, 403.061, 403.087 FS. Law Implemented 403.021, 403.051, 403.061, 403.062, 403.085, 403.086, 403.087, 403.088 FS. History—New 1-9-96, Amended 8-8-99, 4-1-21, XX-XX-XX.

### **62-610.560 Ground Water Recharge by Injection.**

(1) Injection of reclaimed water into Class F-I, G-I, or G-II ground water that is not subject to the requirements in Rule

62-610.466, F.A.C., shall be considered as ground water recharge.

(2) Reclaimed water injected into Class G-II ground water containing 3000 mg/L or less of ~~TDS total dissolved solids~~ or into Class G-I or F-I ground water shall meet the full treatment and disinfection requirements contained in subsection 62-610.563(3), F.A.C.

(3) Reclaimed water may be injected into Class G-II ground water containing greater than 3000 mg/L of ~~TDS total dissolved solids~~, if the following conditions are met:

are met:

(a) through (d) No change.

(4) through (6) No change.

Rulemaking Authority 403.051, 403.061, 403.087, 403.859 FS. Law Implemented 403.021, 403.051, 403.061, 403.062, 403.085, 403.086, 403.087, 403.088, 403.859 FS. History—New 4-4-89, Amended 4-2-90, Formerly 17-610.560, Amended 1-9-96, 8-8-99, 8-8-21, ~~xx-xx-xx~~.

**62-610.562 Salinity Barrier Systems.**

(1) through (3) No change.

(4) Salinity barrier systems involving injection to Class G-II ground water containing 1000 to 3000 mg/L of ~~TDS total dissolved solids~~. Treatment requirements specified in subsection 62-610.560(3), F.A.C., shall apply to this case, if all of the following conditions are met:

(a) through (e) No change.

(5) through (6) No change.

Rulemaking Authority 403.051, 403.061, 403.087 FS. Law Implemented 403.021, 403.051, 403.061, 403.062, 403.085, 403.086, 403.087, 403.088 FS. History—New 1-9-96, Amended 8-8-99, 8-8-21, ~~xx-xx-xx~~.

**62-610.563 Waste Treatment and Disinfection.**

(1) Rule 62-610.563, F.A.C., defines two levels of treatment and disinfection: “principal treatment and disinfection,” and “full treatment and disinfection.” These two levels of treatment and disinfection, or specific components of these levels of treatment and disinfection, shall be applied to ground water recharge and ~~indirect~~ potable reuse projects as required by other rules within Part V of this chapter.

(2) Principal treatment and disinfection requirements.

(a) Preapplication waste treatment shall result in a reclaimed water that meets, at a minimum, secondary treatment and high-level disinfection. The reclaimed water shall not contain more than 5.0 mg/L of ~~TSS total suspended solids~~ before application of the disinfectant.

(b) No change.

(c) Total nitrogen shall be limited to 10 mg/L as nitrogen as a maximum annual average limitation. Monthly average and single sample permit limitations shall be established using the multipliers in subparagraph 62-600.740(1)(b)2., F.A.C. ~~For surface water discharges, WQBELs established~~

~~under Chapter 62-650, F.A.C., may place additional limitations on nitrogen or other parameters.~~

(d) For discharges to surface waters (including groundwater discharges that flow by interflow and affect water quality in surface waters), WQBELs established under Chapter 62-650, F.A.C., Total Maximum Daily Loads (TMDLs) established under Chapter 62-304, F.A.C., or Springs Protection Act established under Sections 373.801 through 373.811 F.S., may result in additional limitations.

(3) Full treatment and disinfection requirements.

(a) For nonpotable reuse projects, the principal treatment and disinfection requirements described in subsection 62-610.563(2), F.A.C., shall apply, unless they are less stringent than the requirements for full treatment and disinfection.

(b) For potable reuse projects, the advanced waste treatment requirements, including high-level disinfection, in Section 403.086, F.S., shall be met unless exempted elsewhere in this chapter. In those waters where the concentrations of phosphorus have been shown not to be a limiting nutrient or a contaminant, the department may waive or alter the compliance levels for phosphorus until there is a demonstration that phosphorus is a limiting nutrient or a contaminant. The reclaimed water shall not contain more than 5.0 mg/L of total suspended solids before application of the disinfectant. Filtration requirements described in subparagraph 62-610.563(2)(b), F.A.C., shall apply.

(c) For discharges to surface waters (including groundwater discharges that flow by interflow and affect water quality in surface waters), WQBELs established under Chapter 62-650, F.A.C., Total Maximum Daily Loads (TMDLs) established under Chapter 62-304, F.A.C., or Springs Protection Act established under Sections 373.801 through 373.811 F.S., may result in additional limitations.

~~(d)(b)~~ Drinking water standards.

1. Wastewater treatment facilities shall be designed and operated to meet the primary and secondary drinking water standards established in Rules 62-550.310 and 62-550.320, F.A.C.

a. The parameters listed as primary drinking water standards shall be applied as maximum single sample permit limits. The primary drinking water standard for asbestos shall not apply. The primary drinking water standards for ~~bacteriological parameters~~ total coliform shall be applied as the disinfection standard as described in Rule 62-550.830 subsection 62-550.310(3), F.A.C., except that public notification requirements shall not apply. The primary drinking water standard for sodium shall be applied as a maximum annual average permit limitation. The multipliers established in subparagraph ~~62-600.740(2)(b)2-~~ 600.740(1)(b)2., F.A.C., shall be used to establish maximum

monthly and single sample maximum permit limits for sodium.

b. Except for pH, the parameters listed as secondary drinking water standards shall be applied as maximum annual average permit limits. The multipliers established in subparagraph ~~62-600.740(2)(b)~~~~62-600.740(1)(b)2~~, F.A.C., shall be used to establish maximum monthly and single sample maximum permit limits.

c. All pH observations in the reclaimed water shall fall within the pH range established in the secondary drinking water standards.

(c) through (e) No change.

(f) ~~The Potable reuse projects shall include a multi-barrier framework composed of source control and appropriate treatment technology that incorporates resiliency (i.e., ability to adjust to upsets), redundancy, and robustness (i.e., features that simultaneously address multiple constituents)~~~~treatment processes shall include processes which serve as multiple barriers for control of organic compounds pollutants, which includes emerging constituents and pathogens.~~

(4) Treatment and disinfection requirements imposed by Rule 62-610.563, F.A.C., are additive to other effluent or reclaimed water limitations imposed by other rules (such as WQBEL limits designed to protect surface water quality, which are imposed by Chapter 62-650, F.A.C., TMDLs established under Chapter 62-304, F.A.C., or Springs criteria established under Sections 373.801 through 373.811, F.S.).

(5) All ground water recharge and ~~indirect~~ potable reuse projects regulated by Part V of this chapter shall implement pretreatment programs in accordance with Rule 62-610.330, F.A.C.

(6) No change.

Rulemaking Authority 403.051, 403.061, 403.087 FS. Law Implemented 403.021, 403.051, 403.061, 403.062, 403.085, 403.086, 403.087, 403.088 FS. History—New 4-4-89, Formerly 17-610.563, Amended 1-9-96, 8-8-99, 4-1-21, ~~xx-xx-xx~~.

### **62-610.564 Pilot Testing Program.**

(1) No change

(2) A wastewater permit revision in accordance with subsection 62-620.325(2), F.A.C., shall be obtained before the pilot testing program commences. The permit revision shall, at a minimum, describe and establish the monitoring and reporting requirements for the pilot testing program.

(3)~~(2)~~ The pilot testing program for nonpotable reuse shall be designed to demonstrate the ability of the selected appropriate treatment technology to reliably and consistently achieve, at a minimum, process to meet the requirements of Part V of this chapter and to generate a supply of reclaimed water that can be used to evaluate the suitability of the reclaimed water for ground water

recharge or ~~indirect~~ potable reuse and to identify critical control points for improved process control and treatment reliability. Pilot testing shall be performed ~~done~~ using wastewater/reclaimed water.

~~(4)(3)~~ The pilot testing program shall accumulate a minimum 12 months of data for the final treatment design. The Department shall approve reductions in the duration or scope of the pilot testing program if all of the following conditions are met:

(a) The applicant provides a detailed plan of study for the Department's review and approval before initiating the pilot testing program.

(b) Applicable portions of the detailed plan of study shall be signed and sealed by a professional engineer or professional geologist registered in the State of Florida, where required by chapter 471 or 492, F.S.

(c) The detailed plan of study provides an affirmative demonstration that a shorter duration study or reduced scope of study will be sufficient to demonstrate the ability of the proposed treatment processes to meet the reclaimed water limitations and to demonstrate the public health and environmental safety of the reclaimed water to be produced. Results of previous pilot testing programs and operating experience at similar water reclamation and reuse projects may be used as part of the demonstration.

(5) The applicant shall provide a detailed plan of study for the Department's review and approval before initiating the pilot testing program. The plan of study shall address subparagraphs ~~62-610.564(1)~~ through (4), F.A.C., as well as the following:

(a) Each source of the industrial wastewater with Standard Industrial Code, and the projected rates and volumes from each source;

(b) The chemical, biological, and physical characteristics of industrial wastewater from each source;

(c) Identify and establish treatment and disinfection processes;

(d) Identify proposed treatment processes to meet applicable surface and ground water quality standards;

(e) Identify and evaluate challenges related to treatment processes;

(f) Identify operational monitoring parameters used to measure the performance throughout the treatment processes;

(g) Identify critical control points for improved process control and system reliability; and

(h) Evaluate and estimate cost of the operation and maintenance and conceptual site plan.

~~(6)(4)~~ The pilot testing program shall include the following:

(a) An affirmative demonstration that the treatment and disinfection processes proposed for inclusion in the

wastewater treatment facility are capable of meeting the full treatment and disinfection requirements contained in subsection 62-610.563(3), F.A.C., and that the reclaimed water will be of sufficient quality to protect public health and environmental quality.

(b) An evaluation of constituents in the wastewater that may be difficult to remove or are precursors to disinfection byproduct formation. Constituents evaluated may include those believed present that are listed in 40 CFR Part 122, Appendix D.

(b) renumbered (c) No Change

(d)(e) Results of a biological testing procedure approved by the Department to determine the mutagenicity of the reclaimed water.

(e)(d) Reclaimed water quality shall be compared to other sources of drinking water currently used in the area. The reclaimed water shall be of a quality that is the same or better than other sources of drinking water currently used in the area.

(7)(5) The Department shall approve reductions in the duration or scope of the pilot testing program if all of the following conditions are met:

(a) The applicant provides a detailed plan of study for the Department's review and approval before initiating the pilot testing program.

(b) The detailed plan of study shall be certified by a professional engineer registered in the State of Florida. Where required by Chapter 471 or 492, F.S., applicable portions of the plan of study shall be signed and sealed by a professional engineer or professional geologist, as appropriate.

(c)(b) The detailed plan of study provides an affirmative demonstration that a shorter duration study or reduced scope of study will be sufficient to affirmatively demonstrate the ability of the proposed treatment processes to meet the reclaimed water limitations and to demonstrate the public health and environmental safety of the reclaimed water to be produced. Results of previous Department-approved pilot testing programs under Part V of this chapter prior to (effective date of rule), or pilot testing programs and operating experience at similar water reclamation and reuse projects may be used as part of the demonstration.

(8) The pilot testing reports shall be submitted to the Department of Environmental Protection Wastewater Management Program, Mail Station 3545, Department of Environmental Protection, Bob Martinez Center, 2600 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2400, and the appropriate district office.

Rulemaking Authority 403.051, 403.061, 403.087 FS. Law Implemented 403.021, 403.051, 403.061, 403.062, 403.085, 403.086, 403.087, 403.088 FS. History—New 4-4-89, Amended 4-2-90, Formerly 17-610.564, Amended 1-9-96, 8-8-99, 4-1-21, xx-xx-xx.

### **62-610.567 Reliability and Operator Staffing.**

(1) A minimum of Class I reliability, as described in paragraph 62-610.300(1)(a), F.A.C., shall be provided at all domestic wastewater treatment facilities providing reclaimed water for ground water recharge and ~~indirect~~ potable reuse systems, which are regulated by ~~Part V~~ of this chapter. In addition to the rules set forth in Chapters 62-600, 62-610 and 62-625, F.A.C., the requirements in Chapters 62-550 and 62-555, F.A.C., shall apply when reclaimed water is used as a water source for a public water supply system.

(a) through (b) No change.

(2) through (5) No change.

Rulemaking Authority 403.051, 403.061, 403.087 FS. Law Implemented 403.021, 403.051, 403.061, 403.062, 403.085, 403.086, 403.087, 403.088 FS. History—New 4-4-89, Amended 4-2-90, Formerly 17-610.567, Amended 1-9-96, 8-8-99, 4-1-21, xx-xx-xx.

### **62-610.568 Monitoring and Operating Protocol.**

(1) through (6) No change.

(7) In accordance with Rule 62-610.320, F.A.C., the permittee shall develop, and the Department shall approve, an operating protocol designed to ensure that the reclaimed water limitations will be met before the reclaimed water is released to the reuse system. For treatment facilities required to provide full treatment and disinfection, the operating protocol shall include monitoring and control of key treatment processes for removal of organic compounds required by subsection 62-610.563(3), F.A.C., and shall incorporate the fail safe “lock-out” provisions of subsection 62-610.567(2), F.A.C. In the engineering report, the applicant shall describe and justify the operational controls on the key treatment processes for removal of organic compounds. Reclaimed water produced at the treatment facility that fails to meet the criteria established in the operating protocol shall not be released to the system storage or reuse system. Such substandard reclaimed water (~~reject water~~ off-spec reclaimed water) shall be either stored for subsequent additional treatment or shall be discharged to another permitted reuse system requiring lower levels of preapplication treatment or to a permitted effluent disposal system. The operating protocol shall be reviewed and updated by the permittee as required by Rule 62-610.320, F.A.C. The permittee shall submit the current operating protocol to the Department for review with any application to renew or modify the permit.

(8) through (11) No change.

Rulemaking Authority 403.051, 403.061, 403.064, 403.087 FS. Law Implemented 403.021, 403.051, 403.061, 403.062, 403.064, 403.085, 403.086, 403.087, 403.088 FS. History—New 4-4-89, Amended 4-2-90, Formerly 17-610.568, Amended 1-9-96, 8-8-99, 11-19-07, 8-8-21, xx-xx-xx.

### **62-610.573 Storage Requirements.**

(1) through (2) No change.

(2) If system storage is provided, the requirements for system storage ponds shall be as contained in Rule 62-610.464, F.A.C.

(3) A separate, off-line system shall be provided for storage of ~~reject water~~ off-spec reclaimed water. ~~Reject water~~ Off-spec reclaimed water storage shall have sufficient capacity to ensure retention of reclaimed water of unacceptable quality. At a minimum, for treatment facilities required to provide full treatment and disinfection, this capacity shall be the volume equal to three days flow at the average daily permitted flow of the treatment plant, or the average daily permitted flow of the reuse system, whichever is less. If full treatment and disinfection is not required, the capacity requirement shall be reduced to one day's flow. Provisions for recirculating this ~~reject water~~ off-spec reclaimed water to other parts of the treatment plant for further treatment shall be incorporated into the design. ~~Reject Off-spec reclaimed water~~ storage shall not be required if another ~~permitted~~ reuse system requiring lower levels of preapplication treatment or effluent disposal system is ~~permitted~~ capable of discharging the reject water off-spec reclaimed water in accordance with the requirements of chapter 62-620, F.A.C. ~~Reject storage~~ Off-spec reclaimed ponds shall be lined or sealed to prevent measurable seepage, as described in Rule 62-610.414, F.A.C.

(4) No change.

Rulemaking Authority 403.051, 403.061, 403.087 FS. Law Implemented 403.021, 403.051, 403.061, 403.062, 403.085, 403.086, 403.087, 403.088 FS. History—New 4-4-89, Amended 4-2-90, Formerly 17-610.573, Amended 1-9-96, 8-8-99, 4-1-21, xx-xx-xx.

**62-610.574 Access Control, Advisory Signs, and Public Notification.**

(1) through (2) No change.

(3) Permittees developing ground water recharge or ~~indirect~~ potable reuse projects that will be regulated under Part V this of chapter shall implement public education and public participation programs during the planning stages of the reuse program. The public education and public participation programs shall be described in detail in the engineering report.

(4) Applicants shall provide written notice to affected public water supply utilities within the area to be affected by the proposed project. For projects involving discharges to Class I waters, affected utilities shall include public water supply utilities drawing source water from the Class I water. For aquifer storage and recovery projects and injection projects regulated by Rules 62-610.466, 62-610.560, or 62-610.562, F.A.C., affected utilities shall include public water supply utilities withdrawing ground water for public water supply within two miles of the proposed injection well, or within the area of review established in accordance with Rule

62-528.300(4), F.A.C., whichever is larger. For projects involving discharges to surface waters that are directly connected to ground water, which serve as ground water recharge, as described in subsection 62-610.555(1) ~~62-610.555(4)~~, F.A.C., affected utilities shall include public water supply utilities withdrawing ground water for public water supply within two miles of the point of discharge and within two miles of the point or points where the surface water enters the ground water. Written notice also shall be provided to the appropriate county health department. These written notifications shall be accomplished before the submittal of the initial permit application. Documentation of this notification procedure shall be included in the engineering report. These notices to affected utilities and to the county health department are required for the following types of projects:

(a) No change.

(b) Discharge to waters contiguous to or tributary to Class I surface waters, as described in subsection 62-610.554(1), ~~62-610.555(4)~~, F.A.C.

(c) Discharge to waters upstream of Class I surface waters, as described in subsection 62-610.554(1), F.A.C.

(c) through (d) renumbered (d) through (e) No change Rulemaking Authority 403.051, 403.061, 403.087 FS. Law Implemented 403.021, 403.051, 403.061, 403.062, 403.085, 403.086, 403.087, 403.088 FS. History—New 4-4-89, Formerly 17-610.574, Amended 1-9-96, 8-8-99, 4-1-21, xx-xx-xx.

**NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE:**

Alexandra Spencer, Senior Program Analyst, Wastewater Management Program

**NAME OF AGENCY HEAD WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE:** Emile D. Hamilton, Secretary

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: October 05, 2021

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAR: December 21, 2020

---

**Section III  
Notice of Changes, Corrections and  
Withdrawals**

NONE

---

**Section IV  
Emergency Rules**

NONE

---

## Section V Petitions and Dispositions Regarding Rule Variance or Waiver

### DEPARTMENT OF MANAGEMENT SERVICES

Public Employees Relations Commission

RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:

60CC-4.002 Ratification by Members of Bargaining Unit  
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that on October 20, 2021, the Public Employees Relations Commission, received a petition for variance from Rule 60CC-4.002, F.A.C., filed by Michelle Walsh and the United Faculty of Florida to conduct all aspects of a ratification election electronically. The petition was assigned Case No. MS-2021-040. Any interested person may submit written comments on this petition within 5 days of publication of this notice by mail to Commission Clerk, Public Employees Relations Commission, 4708 Capital Circle Northwest, Suite 300, Tallahassee, Florida 32303-7256 or by facsimile to (850)488-9704.

A copy of the Petition for Variance or Waiver may be obtained by contacting: The Clerk, Public Employees Relations Commission, 4708 Capital Circle Northwest, Suite 300, Tallahassee, Florida 32303-7256 or by email to Barry.Dunn@perc.myflorida.com.

### DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION

Division of Hotels and Restaurants

RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:

61C-4.010 Sanitation and Safety Requirements

The Florida Department of Business and Professional Regulation, Division of Hotels and Restaurants hereby gives notice: On September 27, 2021 the Division of Hotels and Restaurants received a Petition for a Routine Variance for Subparagraph 3-305.11(A)(2), 2017 FDA Food Code, Section 3-305.14, 2017 FDA Food Code, Section 6-202.15, 2017 FDA Food Code, Section 6-202.16, 2017 FDA Food Code, subsection 61C-4.010(1), Florida Administrative Code, and subsection 61C-4.010(6), Florida Administrative Code from Aguada Catering located in Hialeah. The above referenced F.A.C. addresses the requirement for proper handling and dispensing of food. They are requesting to dispense bulk time/temperature control for safety foods from an open air mobile food dispensing vehicle.

The Petition for this variance was published in Vol 47/189 on September 28, 2021. The Order for this Petition was signed and approved on October 20, 2021. After a complete review of the variance request, the Division finds that the application of this Rule will create a financial hardship to the food service establishment. Furthermore, the Division finds that the

Petitioner meets the burden of demonstrating that the underlying statute has been achieved by the Petitioner ensuring that each pan within the steam table is properly covered with an individual lid; the steam table is enclosed within a cabinet with tight-fitting doors, and is protected by an air curtain installed and operated according to the manufacturer's specifications that protects against flying vermin or other environmental contaminants; all steam table foods must be properly reheated for hot holding at approved commissaries and held hot at the proper minimum temperature per the parameters of the currently adopted FDA Food Code; and steam table food is to be dispensed by the operator with no customer self-service. The Petitioner shall also strictly adhere to the operating procedures and copies of the variance and operating procedures are to be present on the MFDV during all periods of operation.

A copy of the Order or additional information may be obtained by contacting: Kasimira.Kelly@myfloridalicense.com, Division of Hotels and Restaurants, 2601 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1011.

### DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION

Division of Hotels and Restaurants

RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:

61C-1.004 General Sanitation and Safety Requirements

The Florida Department of Business and Professional Regulation, Division of Hotels and Restaurants hereby gives notice: On September 27, 2021 the Division of Hotels and Restaurants received a Petition for a Routine Variance for Subparagraph 61C-1.004(1)(a), Florida Administrative Code and Paragraph 5-202.11(A), 2017 FDA Food Code from HEYCATAEM INC located in Coral Springs. The above referenced F.A.C. addresses the requirement that each establishment have an approved plumbing system installed to transport potable water and wastewater. They are requesting to utilize holding tanks to provide potable water and to collect wastewater at the handwash sink and 3-compartment sink.

The Petition for this variance was published in Vol. 47/189 on September 28, 2021. The Order for this Petition was signed and approved on October 13, 2021. After a complete review of the variance request, the Division finds that the application of this Rule will create a financial hardship to the food service establishment. Furthermore, the Division finds that the Petitioner meets the burden of demonstrating that the underlying statute has been achieved by the Petitioner ensuring the wastewater holding tank for the handwash sinks and 3-compartment sink are emptied at a frequency as to not create a sanitary nuisance; and potable water provided must come from an approved source and be protected from contamination during handling. The Petitioner shall also ensure that the handwash sinks are provided with hot and cold running water under

pressure, soap, an approved hand drying device and a handwashing sign.

A copy of the Order or additional information may be obtained by contacting: Kasimira.Kelly@myfloridalicense.com, Division of Hotels and Restaurants, 2601 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1011.

DEPARTMENT OF CHILDREN AND FAMILIES

Family Safety and Preservation Program

RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:

65C-45.013 Conflict of Interest for all Levels of Licensure  
 NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that on October 5, 2021, the Department of Children and Families, received a petition for waiver of subsection 65C-45.013(2), Florida Administrative Code, from Heartland for Children with respect to Herlinda and Tom Pichette. Subsection 65C-45.013(2), Fla. Admin. Code, requires all initial, relicensing, and ongoing maintenance of the licensed foster home activities to be completed by a licensed child-placing agency outside of the employee’s service area and submitted to the Regional Licensing Authority for approval.

A copy of the Petition for Variance or Waiver may be obtained by contacting: Agency Clerk, Department of Children and Families, 2415 North Monroe Street, Suite 400, Tallahassee, FL 32303 or agency.clerk@myflfamilies.com.

DEPARTMENT OF CHILDREN AND FAMILIES

Family Safety and Preservation Program

RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:

65C-45.013 Conflict of Interest for all Levels of Licensure  
 NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that on October 5, 2021, the Department of Children and Families, received a petition for waiver of subsection 65C-45.013(2), Florida Administrative Code, from Heartland for Children with respect to Vira and John Thomas. Subsection 65C-45.013(2), Fla. Admin. Code, requires all initial, relicensing, and ongoing maintenance of the licensed foster home activities to be completed by a licensed child-placing agency outside of the employee’s service area and submitted to the Regional Licensing Authority for approval.

A copy of the Petition for Variance or Waiver may be obtained by contacting: Agency Clerk, Department of Children and Families, 2415 North Monroe Street, Suite 400, Tallahassee, FL 32303 or agency.clerk@myflfamilies.com.

DEPARTMENT OF CHILDREN AND FAMILIES

Family Safety and Preservation Program

RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:

65C-45.013 Conflict of Interest for all Levels of Licensure  
 NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that on October 5, 2021, the Department of Children and Families, received a petition for waiver of subsection 65C-45.013(2), Florida Administrative Code, from Heartland for Children with respect to Angela Kirkland. Subsection 65C-45.013(2), Fla. Admin. Code,

requires all initial, relicensing, and ongoing maintenance of the licensed foster home activities to be completed by a licensed child-placing agency outside of the employee’s service area and submitted to the Regional Licensing Authority for approval.

A copy of the Petition for Variance or Waiver may be obtained by contacting: Agency Clerk, Department of Children and Families, 2415 North Monroe Street, Suite 400, Tallahassee, FL 32303 or agency.clerk@myflfamilies.com.

DEPARTMENT OF CHILDREN AND FAMILIES

Family Safety and Preservation Program

RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:

65C-45.013 Conflict of Interest for all Levels of Licensure  
 NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that on October 5, 2021, the Department of Children and Families, received a petition for waiver of subsection 65C-45.013(2), Florida Administrative Code, from Heartland for Children with respect to Stephanie and Robert Hinckley. Subsection 65C-45.013(2), Fla. Admin. Code, requires all initial, relicensing, and ongoing maintenance of the licensed foster home activities to be completed by a licensed child-placing agency outside of the employee’s service area and submitted to the Regional Licensing Authority for approval.

A copy of the Petition for Variance or Waiver may be obtained by contacting: Agency Clerk, Department of Children and Families, 2415 North Monroe Street, Suite 400, Tallahassee, FL 32303 or agency.clerk@myflfamilies.com.

DEPARTMENT OF CHILDREN AND FAMILIES

Family Safety and Preservation Program

RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:

65C-45.013 Conflict of Interest for all Levels of Licensure  
 NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that on October 5, 2021, the Department of Children and Families, received a petition for waiver of subsection 65C-45.013(2), Florida Administrative Code, from Heartland for Children with respect to Maria Buckley. Subsection 65C-45.013(2), Fla. Admin. Code, requires all initial, relicensing, and ongoing maintenance of the licensed foster home activities to be completed by a licensed child-placing agency outside of the employee’s service area and submitted to the Regional Licensing Authority for approval.

A copy of the Petition for Variance or Waiver may be obtained by contacting: Agency Clerk, Department of Children and Families, 2415 North Monroe Street, Suite 400, Tallahassee, FL 32303 or Agency.clerk@myflfamilies.com.



## Section VI Notice of Meetings, Workshops and Public Hearings

### DEPARTMENT OF STATE

#### Division of Historical Resources

The Department of State announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: October 29, 2021, 10:00 a.m. – 12:00 Noon

PLACE: Heritage Hall Auditorium, R.A. Gray Building, 500 S. Bronough St., Tallahassee, FL 32399. The Florida Channel will also be broadcasting the workshop at: [thefloridachannel.org](http://thefloridachannel.org).

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Meeting of the Task Force on Abandoned African-American Cemeteries. Comments may be submitted in advance by email to: [africanamericancemeteries@dos.myflorida.com](mailto:africanamericancemeteries@dos.myflorida.com).

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Dr. Shruti Graf at: [shruti.graf@dos.myflorida.com](mailto:shruti.graf@dos.myflorida.com).

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 48 hours before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Dr. Shruti Graf at: [shruti.graf@dos.myflorida.com](mailto:shruti.graf@dos.myflorida.com). If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

For more information, you may contact: Dr. Shruti Graf at: [shruti.graf@dos.myflorida.com](mailto:shruti.graf@dos.myflorida.com).

### DEPARTMENT OF LEGAL AFFAIRS

#### Statewide Council on Human Trafficking – Services and Resources Committee

DATE AND TIME: Thursday, October 28, 2021, 2:30 p.m.

PLACE: to be held virtually

The meeting of the Services and Resources Committee of the Statewide Council on Human Trafficking which was scheduled for Thursday October 28, 2:30 p.m. and to be held virtually has been cancelled. If you have any questions please contact Ned Hance at [Ned.Hance@myfloridalegal.com](mailto:Ned.Hance@myfloridalegal.com) by telephone at 1(813)287-7140.

### DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE AND CONSUMER SERVICES

#### Division of Consumer Services

The Florida Consumers’ Council announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Tuesday, November 2, 2021, 10:30 a.m.

PLACE: Please join my meeting from your computer, tablet or smartphone. <https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/912220261>

You can also dial in using your phone. (For supported devices, tap a one-touch number below to join instantly.)

United States (Toll Free): 1(877)309 2073 - One-touch: tel:+1(877)3092073,,912220261#

United States: +1(646)749-3129 - One-touch: tel:+1(646)7493129,,912220261# Access Code: 912-220-261

Join from a video-conferencing room or system. Dial in or type: 67.217.95.2 or [inroomlink.goto.com](http://inroomlink.goto.com)

Meeting ID: 912 220 261 Or dial directly: 912220261@67.217.95.2 or 67.217.95.2##912220261

New to GoToMeeting? Get the app now and be ready when your first meeting starts: <https://global.gotomeeting.com/install/912220261>.

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Organizational meeting of the Florida Consumers’ Council.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Rick Kimsey, Director, Division of Consumer Services, 2005 Apalachee Parkway, Tallahassee, FL 32399-6500, (850)410-3800.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 3 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Rick Kimsey at (850)410-3800. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

### PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

The FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION announces its regularly scheduled Commission Conference, to which all interested persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Tuesday, November 2, 2021, 9:30 a.m.

PLACE: Room 148, Betty Easley Conference Center, 4075 Esplanade Way, Tallahassee, Florida.

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: To consider those matters ready for decision.

LEGAL AUTHORITY AND JURISDICTION: Chapters 120, 350, 364, 366, and 367, F.S. Persons who may be affected by Commission action on certain items on the Conference agenda may be allowed to address the Commission, either informally or by oral argument, when those items are taken up for discussion, pursuant to Rules 25-22.0021 and 25-22.0022, F.A.C. The Commission Conference Notice, Agenda, related documents, and FPSC contact information are available at [www.floridapsc.com](http://www.floridapsc.com).

ADA: In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, persons needing a special accommodation to participate at this proceeding should contact the Office of Commission Clerk no later than five days prior to the conference at 2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850 or (850)413-6770 (Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8770 Voice or 1(800)955-8771 TDD). Assistive Listening Devices are

available upon request from the Office of Commission Clerk, Gerald L. Gunter Building, Room 152.

**EMERGENCY CANCELLATION OF CONFERENCE:** If a named storm or other disaster requires cancellation of the Conference, Commission staff will attempt to give timely notice. Notice of cancellation will be provided on the Commission's website ([www.floridapsc.com](http://www.floridapsc.com)) under the Hot Topics link on the home page. Cancellation can also be confirmed by calling the Office of Commission Clerk at (850)413-6770.

**REGIONAL PLANNING COUNCILS**

**South Florida Regional Planning Council**

The South Florida and Treasure Coast Regional Planning Councils announces a workshop to which all persons are invited.

**DATE AND TIME:** Friday, November 5, 2021, 10:00 a.m. – 2:00 p.m. ET

**PLACE:** Virtual, please join my meeting from your computer, tablet or smartphone.

<https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/444445245>

You can also dial in using your phone. United States (Toll Free): 1(866)899-4679, United States: (571)317-3116, Access Code: 444-445-245

**GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED:** This will be a virtual discussion on various issues of regional importance and collaboration.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: The South Florida Regional Planning Council, One Oakwood Boulevard, Suite 250, Hollywood, Florida 33020, [klerch@sfrpc.com](mailto:klerch@sfrpc.com), (954)924-3653 or the Treasure Coast Regional Planning Council, 421 SW Camden Avenue, Stuart, Florida 34994, [lgulick@tcrpc.org](mailto:lgulick@tcrpc.org), (772)221-4060.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: the South Florida Regional Planning Council, One Oakwood Boulevard, Suite 250, Hollywood, Florida 33020, [klerch@sfrpc.com](mailto:klerch@sfrpc.com), (954)924-3653 or the Treasure Coast Regional Planning Council, 421 SW Camden Avenue, Stuart, Florida 34994, [lgulick@tcrpc.org](mailto:lgulick@tcrpc.org), (772)221-4060. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, he/she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence from which the appeal is to be issued.

For more information, you may contact: The South Florida Regional Planning Council, One Oakwood Boulevard, Suite 250, Hollywood, Florida 33020, [klerch@sfrpc.com](mailto:klerch@sfrpc.com); (954)924-3653 or the Treasure Coast Regional Planning Council, 421 SW Camden Avenue, Stuart, Florida 34994, [lgulick@tcrpc.org](mailto:lgulick@tcrpc.org), (772)221-4060.

**WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICTS**

**Northwest Florida Water Management District**

The Northwest Florida Water Management District announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

**DATE AND TIME:** November 8, 2021, 10:00 a.m. Central Time

**PLACE:** Gulf Coast State College, Student Union East Building, Room 10 (Private Dining Room), 5230 West Highway 98, Panama City, FL 32401, 10:00 a.m. CT.

**GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED:** In accordance with the timeframe set forth in section 120.525, Florida Statutes, a public meeting is hereby noticed within the timeline for the NORTHWEST FLORIDA WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICT LAND MANAGEMENT PLAN FOR THE CENTRAL REGION.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Frank Powell at (850)539-5999, [Frank.Powell@nwfwater.com](mailto:Frank.Powell@nwfwater.com).

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 72 hours before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Frank Powell at (850)539-5999, [Frank.Powell@nwfwater.com](mailto:Frank.Powell@nwfwater.com). If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

For more information, you may contact: Frank Powell at (850)539-5999, [Frank.Powell@nwfwater.com](mailto:Frank.Powell@nwfwater.com).

**WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICTS**

**South Florida Water Management District**

The South Florida Water Management District announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

**DATE AND TIME:** Tuesday, November 2, 2021, 10:00 a.m., Quarterly meeting of the Everglades Technical Oversight Committee

**PLACE:** SFWMD Headquarters, B-1 Building, 3301 Gun Club Road, West Palm Beach, FL 33406

TOC Members and the public may participate and provide public comment in-person or via Zoom, a media technology free for the public to use.

[https://sfwmd.gov.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN\\_N54CCGI0T6W4V2fqwyZYmA](https://sfwmd.gov.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_N54CCGI0T6W4V2fqwyZYmA)

**GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED:** The Everglades Technical Oversight Committee meeting is a public

meeting held quarterly to provide an update on water quality conditions in the Loxahatchee National Wildlife Refuge and at inflows to Everglades National Park relative to the 1991 Settlement Agreement, entered as a Consent Decree in 1992, and modified in 1995.

The public and stakeholders will have an opportunity to view and comment on the meeting by utilizing the following link: [https://sfwmd-](https://sfwmd-gov.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_N54CCGI0T6W4V2fqwyZYmA)

[gov.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN\\_N54CCGI0T6W4V2fqwyZYmA](https://sfwmd-gov.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_N54CCGI0T6W4V2fqwyZYmA)

This link will go live at approximately 10:00 a.m. on November 2, 2021.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Julianne LaRock at (561)682-6747, [jlalrock@sfwmd.gov](mailto:jlalrock@sfwmd.gov), or [www.SFWMD.gov/toc](http://www.SFWMD.gov/toc), seven days prior to the meeting.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least seven days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Rosie Byrd, District Clerk, at [rbyrd@sfwmd.gov](mailto:rbyrd@sfwmd.gov). If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

For more information, you may contact: Julianne LaRock at (561)682-6747 or [jlalrock@sfwmd.gov](mailto:jlalrock@sfwmd.gov).

**DEPARTMENT OF MANAGEMENT SERVICES**

**Division of Purchasing**

The Department of Management Services announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: November 30, 2021, 3:30 p.m.

PLACE: Public Opening via Go-to-Meeting:

Join from your computer, tablet or smartphone: <https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/662727061>

Join via phone: 1(866)899-4679, Access Code: 662-727-061

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Proposals will be opened for DMS-21/22-185, Social Security Disability Eligibility Services.

Notice of any changes or additional meeting(s) will be posted on the Vendor Bid System.

Access the VBS at [http://vbs.dms.state.fl.us/vbs/main\\_menu](http://vbs.dms.state.fl.us/vbs/main_menu).

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: [dms.purchasing@dms.fl.gov](mailto:dms.purchasing@dms.fl.gov).

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: [dms.purchasing@dms.fl.gov](mailto:dms.purchasing@dms.fl.gov). If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

For more information, you may contact: [dms.purchasing@dms.fl.gov](mailto:dms.purchasing@dms.fl.gov).

**DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION**

**Board of Pilot Commissioners**

The Board of Pilot Commissioners announces a telephone conference call to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: October 29, 2021, 10:00 a.m.

PLACE: 1(888)585-9008, participant code: 491089625

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Deputy Pilot Advancements.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Board of Pilot Commissioners, 2601 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, FL 32399, (850)717-1982.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Board of Pilot Commissioners, 2601 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, FL 32399, (850)717-1982. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, he/she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence from which the appeal is to be issued.

For more information, you may contact: Board of Pilot Commissioners, 2601 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, FL 32399, (850)717-1982.

**DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION**

The Department of Environmental Protection (Department) announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited for the Clean Waterways Act Stormwater Rulemaking Technical Advisory Committee (TAC).

DATE AND TIME: November 2, 2021, 1:00 p.m. ET

PLACE: The Department is providing this public meeting by webinar. Parties can register to attend the webinar at the following link: Webinar Link: <https://attendee.gotowebinar.com/register/5496388676852418060>.

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: The Department is holding the thirteenth public meeting of the TAC. This TAC was established to provide public input to the Department and Florida's water management districts (WMDs) on rule development to update stormwater design and operation regulations under Part IV, Chapter 373, Florida Statutes. These updates will utilize the latest scientific information, as directed

by Florida's Clean Waterways Act, specifically Section 5, Chapter 2020-150, Laws of Florida.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by reviewing the Environmental Resource Permitting, Stormwater Rulemaking information at the following website: <https://floridadep.gov/water/water/content/water-resource-management-rules-development>. You may also request a copy of the agenda by contacting Charmaine Miller via email at: [Stormwater2020@FloridaDEP.gov](mailto:Stormwater2020@FloridaDEP.gov) or via phone at: (850)245-8574.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 48 hours before the meeting by contacting Charmaine Miller as listed above. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

For more information, you may contact the Department at [Stormwater2020@FloridaDEP.gov](mailto:Stormwater2020@FloridaDEP.gov).

---

**DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH**

Division of Children's Medical Services

The Children's Medical Services/ Newborn Screening Follow-up Program announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: November 5, 2021, 9:00 a.m.

PLACE: Microsoft Teams

**GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED:** Newborn Hearing Screening related issues.

Meeting Link - [https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting\\_ZjNiYjI5ODctYjY4Yy00YjNiLWI2YmUtMDC5OTUzYjI1NzBi%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Ti d%22%3a%2228cd8f80-3c44-4b27-81a0-cd2b03a31b8d%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22f632654c-17f0-4097-bb20-3bd64e7ac90c%22%2c%22IsBroadcastMeeting%22%3atru e%7d&btype=a&role=a](https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_ZjNiYjI5ODctYjY4Yy00YjNiLWI2YmUtMDC5OTUzYjI1NzBi%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Ti d%22%3a%2228cd8f80-3c44-4b27-81a0-cd2b03a31b8d%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22f632654c-17f0-4097-bb20-3bd64e7ac90c%22%2c%22IsBroadcastMeeting%22%3atru e%7d&btype=a&role=a)

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: [Felicia.Clowers@flhealth.gov](mailto:Felicia.Clowers@flhealth.gov).

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 48 hours before the workshop/meeting by contacting: If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, he/she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence from which the appeal is to be issued.

For more information, you may contact: [Felicia.Clowers@flhealth.gov](mailto:Felicia.Clowers@flhealth.gov).

---

**DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH**

Office of Statewide Research

The Florida Department of Health announces a telephone conference call to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Wednesday November 3, 2021, 9:00 a.m. – 10:30 a.m.

PLACE: Microsoft Teams Meeting

**GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED:** To conduct review of new research studies involving human participants, modifications to existing studies, and continuing review of ongoing research to make sure research studies comply with regulations and the Department's ethical standards.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Florida Dept. of Health at [IRB@flhealth.gov](mailto:IRB@flhealth.gov).

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Florida Dept. of Health at [IRB@flhealth.gov](mailto:IRB@flhealth.gov). If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

For more information, you may contact: Florida Dept. of Health at [IRB@flhealth.gov](mailto:IRB@flhealth.gov).

---

**DEPARTMENT OF CHILDREN AND FAMILIES**

The Department of Children and Families, announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: November 2, 2021, 2:00 p.m.

PLACE: Please join meeting from your computer, tablet or smartphone. Please join meeting from your computer, tablet or smartphone. <https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/804900837>

You can also dial in using your phone. United States (Toll Free): 1(866)899-4679, United States: (571)317-3116, Access Code: 804-900-837

**GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED:** The purpose of this meeting is for the Department's appointed negotiation team to develop an award recommendation for DCF ITN 2021 005. DCF ITN 2021 005, Community-Based Care Lead Agency for Circuit 12 solicitation advertisement can be accessed on the Vendor Bid System (VBS), accessible at [http://vbs.dms.state.fl.us/vbs/main\\_menu](http://vbs.dms.state.fl.us/vbs/main_menu). The Department will post notice of any changes or additional meetings within the VBS.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: [Kimberly.McMahon@myflfamilies.com](mailto:Kimberly.McMahon@myflfamilies.com).

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 48 hours before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Kimberly.McMahon@myflfamilies.com. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, he/she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence from which the appeal is to be issued.

For more information, you may contact: Kimberly.McMahon@myflfamilies.com.

**DEPARTMENT OF CHILDREN AND FAMILIES**

**Mental Health Program**

The Florida Children and Youth Cabinet announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: October 28, 2021, 9:30 a.m.

PLACE: 882 South Kirkman Road, Suite 200, Orlando, FL 32811

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Members of the Florida Children and Youth Cabinet will meet to conduct regular business.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: A copy of the agenda will be forthcoming.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 2 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Pat Smith, Dept. of Children and Families, (850)717-4452, pat.smith@myflfamilies.com. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

**DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL SERVICES**

The Department of Financial Services announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Wednesday, November 2, 2021, 2:00 p.m. – 4:00 p.m. Eastern Time

PLACE: GoToMeeting virtual meeting. Virtual information is listed on the meeting agenda, located on the Florida PALM Project website:

<https://www.myfloridacfo.com/floridapalm/governance/>.

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: The Florida PALM Executive Steering Committee will meet in-person to discuss the status of the Florida PALM Project. There will be an option for members of the public to attend virtually in listen-only mode. Any member of the public desiring to

provide comment on the subject matter discussed during the meeting may do so in writing via the virtual chat function or email FloridaPALM@myfloridacfo.com within 5 days after the meeting.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: the Florida PALM Project website <https://www.myfloridacfo.com/floridapalm/governance/>.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Jenifer Hartsfield at (850)410-9025 or FloridaPALM@myfloridacfo.com. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

For more information, you may contact: or would like to submit public comment regarding the Florida PALM Executive Steering Committee, please email FloridaPALM@myfloridacfo.com.

**DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL SERVICES**

The Department of Financial Services announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Wednesday, November 4, 2021, 2:00 p.m. – 4:00 p.m. Eastern Time

PLACE: GoToMeeting virtual meeting. Virtual information is listed on the meeting agenda, located on the Florida PALM Project website:

<https://www.myfloridacfo.com/floridapalm/governance/>.

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: The Florida PALM Executive Steering Committee will meet in-person to discuss the status of the Florida PALM Project. There will be an option for members of the public to attend virtually in listen-only mode. Any member of the public desiring to provide comment on the subject matter discussed during the meeting may do so in writing via the virtual chat function or email FloridaPALM@myfloridacfo.com within 5 days after the meeting.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: The Florida PALM Project website <https://www.myfloridacfo.com/floridapalm/governance/>.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Jenifer Hartsfield at (850)410-9025 or FloridaPALM@myfloridacfo.com. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

For more information, you may contact: or would like to submit public comment regarding the Florida PALM Executive

Steering Committee, please email  
FloridaPALM@myfloridacfo.com.

Center for Independent Living in Central Florida, Inc.  
The Center for Independent Living in Central Florida, Inc. announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.  
DATE AND TIME: October 26, 2021, 4:00 p.m.  
PLACE: 720 North Denning Drive, Winter Park FL 32789  
GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED:  
General Board Meeting  
A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Maria Diaz, (407)961-5541.  
Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Maria Diaz, (407)961-5541. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

Florida Independent Living Council  
The Florida Independent Living Council, Inc. announces a telephone conference call to which all persons are invited.  
DATE AND TIME: Thursday, November 4, 2021, 9:00 a.m. until completion of agenda, Youth Committee Meeting  
PLACE: Join Zoom Meeting:  
<https://us06web.zoom.us/j/84702348458?pwd=dy9ZS0tCdWdkckFwOEExXekgzBpadz09>, Meeting ID: 847 0234 8458, Passcode: 216522  
One tap mobile:  
+13126266799,,84702348458# US (Chicago)  
+19292056099,,84702348458# US (New York)  
Dial by your location:  
(312)626-6799, US (Chicago)  
(929)205-6099, US (New York)  
(301)715-8592, US (Washington DC)  
(346)248-7799, US (Houston)  
(669)900-6833, US (San Jose)  
(253)215-8782, US (Tacoma)  
Meeting ID: 847 0234 8458  
Find your local number:  
<https://us06web.zoom.us/j/84702348458?pwd=dy9ZS0tCdWdkckFwOEExXekgzBpadz09>  
GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED:  
Business of the Committees or Business of the Council  
Persons who want to be notified of such meetings may submit a request by contacting the Florida Independent Living Council, Inc., 1882 Capital Circle NE, Suite 202, Tallahassee, Florida 32308, (850)488-5624 or Toll Free 1(877)822-1993 or email [info@floridasilc.org](mailto:info@floridasilc.org).  
A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Florida Independent Living Council.

Pursuant to the Americans with Disabilities Act, accommodations for persons with disabilities are available upon request. If you have a disability and require a reasonable accommodation to fully participate in this event, please contact Beth Meyer, PA, ADA at [beth@floridasilc.org](mailto:beth@floridasilc.org), or (850)488-5624 to discuss your accessibility needs. Please allow five business days' notification to process: last minute requests will be accepted, but may not be possible to fulfill.

Enterprise Florida, Inc.  
The Florida Opportunity Fund announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.  
DATE AND TIME: November 4, 2021, 3:30 p.m.  
PLACE: Virtual meeting:  
[https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting\\_MTA2ZGUyMTUtYTVkMi00YWNiLTlmZDIhYThmZWVhMDI3%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22id%22%3a%228310dbd9-35bb-4e22-8978-e59703aec4bb%22%2c%22oid%22%3a%22b056fa17-d297-4757-beee-78fec688ff94%22%7d](https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_MTA2ZGUyMTUtYTVkMi00YWNiLTlmZDIhYThmZWVhMDI3%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22id%22%3a%228310dbd9-35bb-4e22-8978-e59703aec4bb%22%2c%22oid%22%3a%22b056fa17-d297-4757-beee-78fec688ff94%22%7d)  
GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED:  
General administrative matters  
A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Lorna Dusti, (407)956-5651.  
For more information, you may contact: Lorna Dusti, (407)956-5651.

Florida Surplus Asset Fund Trust  
The Florida Surplus Asset Fund Trust announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.  
DATE AND TIME: Thursday, October 28, 2021, 1:00 p.m. via Zoom  
PLACE: Zoom Meeting ID: 841 2246 7813, Passcode: 791807  
GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED:  
AGENDA  
This meeting of the Board of Trustees for Florida Surplus Asset Fund Trust will be held on  
Thursday, October 28, 2021, 1:00 p.m. via Zoom. Zoom Meeting ID: 841 2246 7813; Passcode: 791807  
MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES - BOARD OF PARTICIPANTS  
A. BUSINESS ITEMS  
1. Call to Order/ Roll Call  
2. Public Comments  
3. Approval Prior Board Meeting Minutes  
(a) July 22, 2021  
(b) September 30, 2021  
4. Participant and Guest Introductions  
5. Proposed Budget 2022 (Jeff)  
6. Proposed Changes to Investment Policies and Information Statement – “GIC’s” (Brian & Jeff)  
B. STAFF REPORTS

- 1. Investment Advisor/Operations Manager Update - PMA
  - (a) Economic and Market Update
  - (b) FLSAFE LGIP Portfolio Update; Comparative Market Review
  - (c) Operations Manager Report
  - (d) PMA Update on Term Series
  - (e) PMA Update on New FIIP Product
  - (f) Sales Update
  - (g) PMA Comments
- 2. Administrator Update- FMAS
  - (a) Marketing Update, Presentations, FGFOA Annual Conference
  - (b) Upcoming Board Elections
  - (c) FMAS Comments
- C. OTHER ITEMS
  - 1. FLSAFE Counsel’s Comments
  - 2. Participants’ Comments
  - 3. Advisory Council Comments
  - 4. Board Members’ Comments
- D. SET NEXT MEETING DATE/ ADJOURNMENT

1. Future meeting dates: January 27, 2022  
 A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Jeff Larson, FLSAFE Administrator at (407)496-1597, jlarson@floridamanagementservices.com.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 24 hours before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Jeff Larson, FLSAFE Administrator at (407)496-1597, jlarson@floridamanagementservices.com. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, he/she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence from which the appeal is to be issued.

For more information, you may contact: Jeff Larson, FLSAFE Administrator at (407)496-1597, jlarson@floridamanagementservices.com.

---

**Section VII**  
**Notice of Petitions and Dispositions**  
**Regarding Declaratory Statements**

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION  
 Division of Florida Condominiums, Timeshares and Mobile Homes

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Division of Florida Condominiums, Timeshares, and Mobile Homes, Department of Business and Professional Regulation, State of Florida has received the petition for declaratory statement from Condos 4 US, LLC. The petition seeks the agency's opinion as to the applicability of 718.103(16) as it applies to the petitioner.

1. Whether Olive Glen Property Holdings, LLC, is a developer as defined by subsection 718.103(16), Florida Statutes, and 2. If so, whether Olive Glen Property Holdings is limited to electing less than a majority of the board of administration?

A copy of the Petition for Declaratory Statement may be obtained by contacting: The Department of Business and Professional Regulation, Division of Florida Condominiums, Timeshares, and Mobile Homes, 2601 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1030, (850)488-1631, lscmhpublicrecords@myfloridalicense.com.

Please refer all comments to: to James Richardson, Chief Attorney, Department of Business and Professional Regulation, Division of Florida Condominiums, Timeshares, and Mobile Homes, 2601 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2202. Responses, motions to intervene, or requests for an agency hearing, §120.57(2), Fla. Stat., must be filed within 21 days of this notice.

---

**DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION**  
**Board of Cosmetology**  
**NOTICE OF PETITION FOR DECLARATORY STATEMENT**

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Board of Cosmetology has received a Petition for Declaratory Statement from Aesthetic Science Skin Care, filed on October 11, 2021. Petitioner did not identify a rule or statute.

Petitioner seeks clarification from the Board as to why the Board considers low frequency ultrasound a medical device. Petitioner also seeks the Board to define the language that distinguishes medical procedures and equipment that changes the appearance of skin, which skin care professionals have always strived to do. Except for good cause shown, motions for leave to intervene must be filed within 21 days after publication of this notice.

Copies of the petition may be obtained by contacting: Krista Woodard, Executive Director, Board of Cosmetology, 2601 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0783, Krista.Woodard@myfloridalicense.com

---

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION

Board of Cosmetology

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Board of Cosmetology has received the petition for declaratory statement from TLC Spa, Inc., filed on October 8, 2021. The petition seeks the agency's opinion as to the applicability of Rule 61G5-18.00015, F.A.C. as it applies to the petitioner.

Petitioner seeks a determination from the Board regarding clarification on certain sections of the Purposed 2021-2022 Regulatory plan that was approved at the July 2021 board meeting to ensure that we are in compliance with the intent of the new definitions and to seek uniform interpretation within the full extent of the new laws. Petitioner also seeks clarification on possible conflicting language and on the scope of practice and training difference to the present facial specialists the "Occupational Freedom and Opportunity Act." Except for good cause shown, motions for leave to intervene must be filed within 21 days after publication of this notice.

A copy of the Petition for Declaratory Statement may be obtained by contacting: Krista Woodard, Executive Director, Board of Cosmetology, 2601 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0783, Krista.Woodard@dbpr.state.fl.us.

**Section VIII**

**Notice of Petitions and Dispositions Regarding the Validity of Rules**

Notice of Petition for Administrative Determination has been filed with the Division of Administrative Hearings on the following rules:

NONE

Notice of Disposition of Petition for Administrative Determination has been filed with the Division of Administrative Hearings on the following rules:

NONE

**Section IX**

**Notice of Petitions and Dispositions Regarding Non-rule Policy Challenges**

NONE

**Section X**

**Announcements and Objection Reports of the Joint Administrative Procedures Committee**

NONE

**Section XI**

**Notices Regarding Bids, Proposals and Purchasing**

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

University of North Florida

ITB# 22-14 Building 6 Shop Heater Conversion

Notice of Invitation to Bid

UNIVERSITY OF NORTH FLORIDA PROCUREMENT SERVICES ITB# 22-14 BUILDING 6 SHOP HEATER CONVERSION

The University of North Florida Board of Trustees, a public body corporate, is requesting the services of a Florida Certified Mechanical Contractor to complete the removal and replacement of six water heaters located at the University of North Florida, 1 UNF Drive, Jacksonville, FL 32224.

Project information

The scope of work includes all labor, materials, and supervision required for the removal of six existing gas water heaters and turnkey installation of six new water heaters in UNF Annex, Building 6. All required building permits shall be the responsibility of the Contractor.

The proposed schedule for this project is:

Advertisement	October 22, 2021
Pre-Bid meeting	November 1, 2021, 1:00 p.m.
Site Visit	November 2, 2021, 10:00 a.m.
Deadline for questions	November 4, 2021, 12:00 Noon
Response to questions	November 8, 2021
Bid Opening	November 16, 2021, 2:00 p.m.

Responses will only be accepted electronically through the UNF Bid Portal. Responses delivered in-person, by mail, by fax, or by email will be deemed non-responsive.

Bonds& Insurance

The University requires a Builders Risk policy for this project. Additional insurance requirements as provided in the University's Terms and Conditions and resulting contract, if any, will apply.

A Bid Security in the amount of five percent (5%) of the total contract price is required. For details on acceptable bid security formats, see Information for Bidders above. The Contract, if



over \$100,000, will require a 100% Performance and Payment Bond.

Solicitation documents, forms, drawings and descriptive project information may be obtained online at <https://bids.sciquest.com/apps/Router/PublicEvent?CustomerOrg=UNF>.

Pasco County Board of County Commissioners  
 IFB-KM-22-018  
 IFB-KM-22-018 LITTLE ROAD FORCE MAIN REPLACEMENT (FROM CITIZENS DRIVE TO DECUBELLIS ROAD); November 19, 2021, 1:00 p.m.; WWW.BIDNETDIRECT.COM

**Section XII  
 Miscellaneous**

**DEPARTMENT OF STATE**

Index of Administrative Rules Filed with the Secretary of State Pursuant to subparagraph 120.55(1)(b)6. – 7., F.S., the below list of rules were filed in the Office of the Secretary of State between 3:00 p.m., Friday, October 15, 2021 and 3:00 p.m., Thursday, October 21, 2021.

Rule No.	File Date	Effective Date
62-304.505	10/20/2021	11/9/2021
62-304.515	10/20/2021	11/9/2021
64B3-12.001	10/18/2021	11/7/2021
64B7-29.007	10/15/2021	11/4/2021
64B7-32.002	10/15/2021	11/4/2021
64B7-32.003	10/15/2021	11/4/2021
64B7-32.005	10/18/2021	11/7/2021
64B19-17.002	10/15/2021	11/4/2021
64D-3.048	10/15/2021	11/4/2021
<b>LIST OF RULES AWAITING LEGISLATIVE APPROVAL SECTIONS 120.541(3), 373.139(7) AND/OR 373.1391(6), FLORIDA STATUTES</b>		
Rule No.	File Date	Effective Date
60FF1-5.009	7/21/2016	**/**/****
60P-1.003	11/5/2019	**/**/****
60P-2.002	11/5/2019	**/**/****

60P-2.003	11/5/2019	**/**/****
64B8-10.003	12/9/2015	**/**/****

**PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION  
 FAR NOTICE OF SECURITIES APPLICATION**

The Florida Public Service Commission (PSC) will consider at its November 2, 2021, Agenda Conference, Docket No. 20210153-EI - Application for authority to issue and sell securities for 12 months ending December 31, 2022, pursuant to Section 366.04, F.S., and Chapter 25-8, F.A.C., by Tampa Electric Company (Company). The Company seeks PSC approval to issue to sell and/or exchange equity securities and issue, sell, exchange and/or assume long-term or short-term debt securities and/or to assume liabilities or obligations as guarantor, endorser or surety during the period covered by this Application. The Company also seeks authority to enter into interest rate swaps or other derivative instruments related to debt securities. Any exercise of the requested authority will be for the benefit of the Company. In connection with this application, the Company confirms that the capital raised pursuant to this application will be used in connection with the activities of the Company’s regulated electric and gas divisions and not the unregulated activities of the utilities or their affiliates.

DATE AND TIME: Tuesday, November 2, 2021. The Agenda Conference begins at 9:30 a.m., although the time at which this item will be heard cannot be determined at this time.

PLACE: Commission Hearing Room 148, Betty Easley Conference Center, 4075 Esplanade Way, Tallahassee, Florida 32301.

PURPOSE: To take final action in Docket No. 20210153-EI - Application for authority to issue and sell securities during calendar years 2022 and 2023, pursuant to Section 366.04, F.S., and Chapter 25-8, F.A.C., by Tampa Electric Company.

In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, persons needing a special accommodation to participate at this proceeding should contact the Office of Commission Clerk no later than five days prior to the conference at 2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850 or (850)413-6770 (Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8770 Voice or 1(800)955-8771 TDD). Assistive Listening Devices are available upon request from the Office of Commission Clerk, Gerald L. Gunter Building, Room 152. For more information, please contact Ryan Sandy, Esq., Office of General Counsel, at (850)413-6856.

**EMERGENCY CANCELLATION OF CONFERENCE**

If settlement of the case or a named storm or other disaster requires cancellation of the proceedings, Commission staff will attempt to give timely direct notice to the parties. Notice of

cancellation will also be provided on the Commission’s website (http://www.floridapsc.com) under the Hot Topics link found on the home page. Cancellation can also be confirmed by calling the Office of the General Counsel at (850)413-6199.

**PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION  
FAR NOTICE OF SECURITIES APPLICATION**

The Florida Public Service Commission (PSC) will consider at its November 2, 2021, Agenda Conference, Docket No. 20210154-EI - Application for authority to issue and sell securities during 12 months ending December 31, 2022, pursuant to Section 366.04, F.S., and Chapter 25-8, F.A.C., by Duke Energy Florida, LLC (Duke). Duke seeks PSC approval to issue to issue, sell or otherwise incur during 2022 up to \$1,500,000,000 of any combination of equity securities and long-term debt securities and other long-term obligations (exclusive of bank loans issued under Duke’s long-term credit facilities). Additionally, Duke requests authority to issue, sell or otherwise incur during 2022 and 2023 up to \$1,500,000,000 outstanding at any time of short-term debt securities and other obligations, which amount shall be in addition to and in excess of the amount Duke is authorized to issue pursuant to Section 366.04, F.S. Short-term borrowings under this authority would most likely consist of borrowings under the utility money pool and/or master credit facility in which Duke is a participant along with the other utility subsidiaries of Duke Energy Corporation, or through direct, pre-payable bank loans.

**DATE AND TIME:** Tuesday, November 2, 2021. The Agenda Conference begins at 9:30 a.m., although the time at which this item will be heard cannot be determined at this time.

**PLACE:** Commission Hearing Room 148, Betty Easley Conference Center, 4075 Esplanade Way, Tallahassee, Florida 32301.

**PURPOSE:** To take final action in Docket No. 20210154-EI - Application for authority to issue and sell securities during 12 months ending December 31, 2022, pursuant to Section 366.04, F.S., and Chapter 25-8, F.A.C., by Duke Energy Florida, LLC. In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, persons needing a special accommodation to participate at this proceeding should contact the Office of Commission Clerk no later than five days prior to the conference at 2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850 or (850)413-6770 (Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8770 Voice or 1(800)955-8771 TDD). Assistive Listening Devices are available upon request from the Office of Commission Clerk, Gerald L. Gunter Building, Room 152. For more information, please contact Ryan Sandy, Esq., Office of General Counsel, at (850)413-6856.

**EMERGENCY CANCELLATION OF CONFERENCE**

If settlement of the case or a named storm or other disaster requires cancellation of the proceedings, Commission staff will

attempt to give timely direct notice to the parties. Notice of cancellation will also be provided on the Commission’s website (http://www.floridapsc.com) under the Hot Topics link found on the home page. Cancellation can also be confirmed by calling the Office of the General Counsel at (850)413-6199.

**DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL SERVICES  
Division of Treasury  
Quarterly List of Qualified Public Depositories  
DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL SERVICES  
DIVISION OF TREASURY  
BUREAU OF COLLATERAL MANAGEMENT  
PUBLIC DEPOSITS SECTION**

\*\*\*\*\*  
\*\*\*\*\*

FOR PUBLIC DEPOSITORS TO RECEIVE THE PROTECTION FROM LOSS PROVIDED IN CHAPTER 280, FLORIDA STATUTES, THEY SHALL COMPLY WITH THE FOLLOWING ON EACH PUBLIC DEPOSIT ACCOUNT IN ADDITION TO ANY OTHER REQUIREMENTS SPECIFIED IN CHAPTER 280: (1) EXECUTE THE PUBLIC DEPOSIT IDENTIFICATION AND ACKNOWLEDGMENT FORM DFS-J1-1295 WITH THE QUALIFIED PUBLIC DEPOSITORY (QPD), MAINTAIN IT AS A VALUABLE RECORD, AND CONFIRM THE ACCOUNT ANNUALLY; (2) EXECUTE A REPLACEMENT FORM DFS-J1-1295 WHEN THERE IS A MERGER, ACQUISITION, NAME CHANGE, OR OTHER EVENT WHICH CHANGES THE ACCOUNT NAME, ACCOUNT NUMBER, OR NAME OF THE QPD.

THE FOLLOWING QPDS ARE AUTHORIZED TO HOLD PUBLIC DEPOSITS. THE CITIES AND STATES LISTED ARE THE HOME OFFICE LOCATIONS. QPDS MARKED WITH AN ASTERISK HAVE LIMITED THE AMOUNT OF PUBLIC DEPOSITS THEY WILL ADMINISTER. QPDS HAVING A DATE BESIDE THEIR NAME ARE IN THE PROCESS OF WITHDRAWING FROM THE PROGRAM AND SHALL NOT RECEIVE OR RETAIN PUBLIC DEPOSITS AFTER THE DATE SHOWN. THEY MAY, HOWEVER, HAVE CERTAIN OBLIGATIONS TO THE PROGRAM AFTER THAT DATE WITH WHICH THEY MUST COMPLY BEFORE CONCLUDING THE WITHDRAWAL PROCESS.

\*\*\*\*\*  
\*\*\*\*\*

ALABAMA

ANDALUSIA

CCB COMMUNITY BANK

ATMORE  
UNITED BANK

BIRMINGHAM  
REGIONS BANK

HOMEWOOD  
SERVISFIRST BANK

HUNTSVILLE  
PROGRESS BANK AND TRUST

ARKANSAS

CONWAY  
CENTENNIAL BANK

DELAWARE

WILMINGTON  
PNC BANK, N.A.  
TD BANK, N.A.

FLORIDA

ARCADIA  
CREWS BANK & TRUST

BELLE GLADE  
BANK OF BELLE GLADE

BOCA RATON  
PARADISE BANK

CHIEFLAND  
DRUMMOND COMMUNITY BANK

CLEARWATER  
FLAGSHIP BANK

CLEWISTON  
FIRST BANK

CORAL GABLES  
AMERANT BANK, N.A.  
BANESCO USA  
BRADESCO BAC FLORIDA BANK  
PROFESSIONAL BANK

DADE CITY  
FIRST NATIONAL BANK OF PASCO

DELAND  
MAINSTREET COMMUNITY BANK OF FLORIDA  
SURETY BANK

DORAL  
U.S. CENTURY BANK

ENGLEWOOD  
ENGLEWOOD BANK & TRUST

FORT MYERS  
EDISON NATIONAL BANK  
FINEMARK NATIONAL BANK & TRUST

FORT WALTON BEACH  
BEACH BANK  
FNBT BANK

FROSTPROOF  
CITIZENS BANK AND TRUST

GRACEVILLE  
PEOPLES BANK OF GRACEVILLE

INVERNESS  
BRANNEN BANK

JACKSONVILLE  
FLORIDA CAPITAL BANK, N.A.  
TIAA, FSB DBA EVERBANK

JUNO BEACH  
ANCHOR BANK

KEY WEST  
FIRST STATE BANK OF THE FLORIDA KEYS

LAKE CITY  
FIRST FEDERAL BANK

LAKELAND  
BANK OF CENTRAL FLORIDA

MADISON  
MADISON COUNTY COMMUNITY BANK

MAITLAND  
AXIOM BANK, N.A.

FIRST COLONY BANK OF FLORIDA

MAYO  
LAFAYETTE STATE BANK

MERRITT ISLAND  
COMMUNITY BANK OF THE SOUTH

MIAMI  
CITY NATIONAL BANK OF FLORIDA  
GROVE BANK & TRUST  
INTERNATIONAL FINANCE BANK  
OCEAN BANK  
PACIFIC NATIONAL BANK  
SUNSTATE BANK  
TERRABANK, N.A.

MIAMI LAKES  
BANKUNITED, N.A.

MOUNT DORA  
FIRST NATIONAL BANK OF MOUNT DORA, THE

NAPLES  
FIRST FLORIDA INTEGRITY BANK

NICEVILLE  
PNB COMMUNITY BANK

OAKLAND PARK  
AMERICAN NATIONAL BANK

ORANGE CITY  
COGENT BANK

ORLANDO  
ONE FLORIDA BANK

OVIEDO  
CITIZENS BANK OF FLORIDA

PALM COAST  
INTRACOASTAL BANK

PANAMA CITY  
FIRST NATIONAL BANK NORTHWEST FLORIDA

PENSACOLA  
BANK OF THE SOUTH

PORT CHARLOTTE

CHARLOTTE STATE BANK & TRUST

ST. PETERSBURG  
FIRST HOME BANK  
RAYMOND JAMES BANK

SEBRING  
HEARTLAND NATIONAL BANK

SOUTH MIAMI  
FIRST NATIONAL BANK OF SOUTH MIAMI

STARKE  
COMMUNITY STATE BANK

STUART  
SEACOAST NATIONAL BANK

TALLAHASSEE  
CAPITAL CITY BANK  
PRIME MERIDIAN BANK

TAMPA  
BANK OF TAMPA, THE  
CENTRAL BANK  
FIRST CITRUS BANK  
PILOT BANK

THE VILLAGES  
CITIZENS FIRST BANK

UMATILLA  
UNITED SOUTHERN BANK

VERO BEACH  
MARINE BANK & TRUST COMPANY

WAUCHULA  
FIRST NATIONAL BANK OF WAUCHULA  
WAUCHULA STATE BANK

WEST PALM BEACH  
FLAGLER BANK

WINTER HAVEN  
SOUTH STATE BANK, N.A.

WINTER PARK  
WINTER PARK NATIONAL BANK

GEORGIA

ALMA  
PINELAND BANK

ATLANTA  
CADENCE BANK, N.A.

BLACKSHEAR  
PRIMESOUTH BANK

BLAIRSVILLE  
UNITED COMMUNITY BANK

COLQUITT  
PEOPLESSOUTH BANK

COLUMBUS  
SYNOVUS BANK

DARIEN  
SOUTHEASTERN BANK

MOULTRIE  
AMERIS BANK

WAYCROSS  
FIRST SOUTHERN BANK

ILLINOIS

CHAMPAIGN  
BUSEY BANK

CHICAGO  
BMO HARRIS BANK, N.A.  
NORTHERN TRUST COMPANY, THE

INDIANA

EVANSVILLE  
UNITED FIDELITY BANK, FSB

IOWA

IOWA CITY  
MIDWESTONE BANK

KENTUCKY

LOUISVILLE  
REPUBLIC BANK & TRUST COMPANY

LOUISIANA

PLAQUEMINE  
ANTHEM BANK & TRUST

MASSACHUSETTS

BOSTON  
ONEUNITED BANK

MISSISSIPPI

FOREST  
COMMUNITY BANK OF MISSISSIPPI

GULFPORT  
HANCOCK WHITNEY BANK

HATTIESBURG  
THE FIRST, A NATIONAL BANKING ASSOCIATION

JACKSON  
TRUSTMARK NATIONAL BANK

TUPELO  
BANCORPSOUTH BANK  
RENASANT BANK

NEW JERSEY

PASSAIC  
VALLEY NATIONAL BANK

NEW YORK

GLENVILLE  
TRUSTCO BANK

NEW YORK CITY  
BANK LEUMI USA  
POPULAR BANK

NORTH CAROLINA

CHARLOTTE  
BANK OF AMERICA, N.A.  
TRUIST BANK

OHIO

CINCINNATI  
FIFTH THIRD BANK, N.A.  
U.S. BANK N.A.

COLUMBUS  
JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A.

SOUTH DAKOTA

SIOUX FALLS  
CITIBANK, N.A.  
WELLS FARGO BANK, N.A.

TENNESSEE

OOLTEWAH  
MILLENNIUM BANK

MEMPHIS  
FIRST HORIZON BANK

PIGEON FORGE  
SMARTBANK

PUERTO RICO

SAN JUAN  
FIRSTBANK PUERTO RICO

IN WILMINGTON, DELAWARE EFFECTIVE AFTER THE  
CLOSE OF BUSINESS OCTOBER 8, 2021.

LEGACY BANK OF FLORIDA  
BOCA RATON  
LEGACY BANK OF FLORIDA, A QPD WITH A HOME  
OFFICE LOCATED IN BOCA RATON, FLORIDA WAS  
MERGED WITH AND INTO SEACOAST NATIONAL  
BANK, A QPD WITH A HOME LOCATED IN STUART,  
FLORIDA AS OF THE CLOSE OF BUSINESS AUGUST 6,  
2021.

RAYMOND JAMES BANK, N.A.  
ST. PETERSBURG  
RAYMOND JAMES BANK, N.A. LOCATED IN ST.  
PETERSBURG, FLORIDA CHANGED ITS NAME TO  
RAYMOND JAMES BANK AND ITS CHARTER FROM A  
NATIONAL BANK TO A STATE CHARTED BANK  
EFFECTIVE JUNE 1, 2021.

---

Section XIII  
Index to Rules Filed During Preceding  
Week

NOTE: The above section will be published on Tuesday  
beginning October 2, 2012, unless Monday is a holiday, then it  
will be published on Wednesday of that week.

\*\*\*\*\*  
\*\*\*\*\*

THE FOLLOWING IS A LIST OF INSTITUTIONS THAT  
HAD A CHANGE SINCE THE LAST PUBLICATION OF  
THIS REPORT.

\*\*\*\*\*  
\*\*\*\*\*

AMERICAN MOMENTUM BANK  
COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS  
AMERICAN MOMENTUM BANK, A QPD WITH A HOME  
OFFICE LOCATED IN COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS,  
VOLUNTARILY WITHDREW FROM THE PROGRAM  
EFFECTIVE SEPTEMBER 30, 2021. THIS WAS  
PREVIOUSLY REPORTED IN THE OCTOBER 4, 2021  
ISSUE OF THE FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE REGISTER.

BBVA USA  
BIRMINGHAM, ALABAMA  
BBVA USA, A QPD WITH A HOME OFFICE LOCATED IN  
BIRMINGHAM, ALABAMA WAS MERGED WITH AND  
INTO PNC BANK, N.A., A QPD WITH A HOME LOCATED